Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Wednesday 1 December 2021 at 10.00 am

Council Chamber - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

ORGANISATION ITEMS
1

APOLOGIES

Stephen Bace

2

MINUTES (Pages 1 - 16)

Stephen Bace

To agree the attached minutes from the meetings on 29 September 2021
and 13 October 2021.
3

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

Cllr Phil Awford

4

WORK PLAN (Pages 17 - 18)

Cllr Phil Awford

Members to discuss any items for the work plan
Forthcoming Executive Decision List
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=771&Year=0
Council Strategy
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/corporate-plansand-strategies/looking-to-the-future-new-council-strategy/
SCRUTINY ITEMS
5

ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY (Pages 19 - 40)

Steve Mawson

6

OVERVIEW OF THE CORPORATE PERFORMANCE DATASET (Pages

Rob Ayliffe

Date Published:23 November 2021

41 - 48)
7

REVIEW OF HIGHWAYS PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (Pages 49 52)

Rob Ayliffe

8

STRATEGIC PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT REPORT - 2ND
QUARTER 2021/22 (Pages 53 - 92)

Rob Ayliffe

9

CORPORATE RESOURCES PERFORMANCE REPORT (Pages 93 - 96)

Steve Mawson

10

FINANCE UPDATE (Pages 97 - 110)

Paul Blacker

11

BUDGET SCRUTINY - PLANS FOR 6 JANUARY 2022 (Pages 111 112)

Stephen Bace

Membership – Cllr Phil Awford (Chair), Cllr Matt Babbage, Cllr John Bloxsom, Cllr Ben Evans,
Cllr Andrew Gravells MBE, Cllr Terry Hale, Cllr Colin Hay, Cllr Jeremy Hilton, Cllr Stephen Hirst,
Cllr Dr Andrew Miller, Cllr Dominic Morris, Cllr Lisa Spivey and Cllr Chloe Turner
Added Members Co-Opted Member (a)

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring
Officer (Rob Ayliffe Tel: 01452 328506 e-mail: rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior
to the start of the meeting.

(b)

INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect Minutes or
Reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the
meeting, please contact:
Stephen Bace, Lead Democratic Services Officer
:01452 324204/fax: 425850/e-mail: stephen.bace@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is permitted subject
to the Local Government Access to Information provisions. Please contact Democratic Services (tel
01452 324202) to make the necessary arrangements ahead of the meeting. If you are a member of
the public and do not wish to be photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services
Officer on duty at the meeting.
EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to
Shire Hall in Westgate Street. Please remain there and await further instructions.

Agenda Item 2
CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MINUTES of a meeting of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on
Wednesday 29 September 2021 at the Council Chamber - Shire Hall, Gloucester.
PRESENT:
Cllr Phil Awford (Chair)
Cllr Ben Evans
Cllr Andrew Gravells (via
webex)
Cllr Dominic Morris
Cllr Colin Hay

Cllr Stephen Hirst
Cllr Dr Andrew Miller
Cllr Lisa Spivey (Via webex)
Cllr Chloe Turner
Cllr Jeremy Hilton
Cllr Matt Babbage (via
webex)

Substitutes:
Officers in attendance:
Rob Ayliffe, Director of Policy Performance & Governance and
Monitoring Officer
Steve Mawson, Executive Director of Corporate Resources
Paul Blacker, Director of Finance
Simon Harper (Via webex), Head of Democratic Services
Stephen Bace, Lead Democratic Services Advisor
Ian Mawdsley, (via Webex) Head of Strategic Procurement
Apologies:

1.

Cllr Terry Hale
Cllr John Bloxsom

APOLOGIES
See above.

2.

MINUTES
The Committee agreed the minutes of the meetings on 19 March, 24 June and 22
July as a correct record.

3.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
No additional declarations were made.

4.

WORK PLAN
4.1

Members noted the work plan that had been circulated with the papers.

-1-

Page 1

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

4.2

As part of the discussion members suggested the following items for
consideration by Lead Members to add to the work plan:


A detailed breakdown and discussion around the Indices of Multiple
Deprivation 2019. To include information on how the data was compiled and
what factors were taken into consideration. – February 2022



For the 6 January budget scrutiny session to include review of the Council
Strategy and for the day to be titled as such.



Review of upgrades and accommodation changes based on agile working
requirements – potential April 2022



Milestones and timeframe around IT infrastructure changes and roll out of
Office 365, including discussion on IT performance and the effect on
services.- for later in the year

5.

UPDATE ON THE PROCUREMENT TOOLKIT

5.1

Steve Mawson and Ian Mawdsley introduced the report which was an update on the
procurement toolkit which as being developed and would be a resource for GCC
staff reflecting a largely decentralised procurement function.

5.2

The use of single use plastics was discussed with officers providing examples of
the activities to reduce and remove this in Shire Hall and within services that had
been contracted out.

5.3

The toolkit would cover high value and complex procurements undertaken by the
Strategic Procurement Service to low value and simple procurements undertaken
by non procurement specialists.

5.4

Members noted the vehicles for measuring social value within the toolkit which
allowed individual procurements to select themes, outcomes and measures
relevant to their area, for example single use plastics and than allocated a
weighting to this.

5.5

Members understood there would be pilots around the application of social value. A
strategy would address the key elements of this. The Council would publish what
measures were being taken so the public could go on and see how the Council was
performing.

5.6

The Committee recognised that the Single Use Plastic Scrutiny Task Group had
met in the autumn of 2019 before the work was suspended due to the pandemic.
An outline of the toolkit had been provided to that group.

-2-

Page 2

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

5.7

It was clarified that the Council would make sure that every tool was available to
enable the fulfilment of the Council motion.

5.8

One member asked for details on whether the actions from the single use plastics
take group had been picked up. It was explained that there had been a previous
update on the actions that had been taken forward and that could be sent to
Committee members.
ACTION
Steve Mawson

5.9

In response to a question it was explained that one the procurement toolkit was
finished then members would have a training session on it. This would likely to be in
6 months time.

5.10

There was a discussion around how social value in a contract was decided. It was
explained that themes outcomes and measures were set out and by law social
value had to be considered. There was a portal which provided an advisor to help
those procuring get the best social value from a contract. One member stated that it
should be about driving forward social value and not just a box ticking exercise to
signpost what was already there. Another member highlighted that programme
management principles and processes needed to be front and centre of decision
making and that there needed to be balance between value for money and social
value. There was a concern that decision makers could be overwhelmed with too
many factors to consider.

5.11

In response to question on considering single use plastic issues when purchasing, it
was stated that there were industry standards that were followed. There was a
personal responsibility around disposing of waste materials from packaging. There
were also national frameworks in place. One member stated that the Council should
be feeding in their requirements and influencing the content of the framework where
possible.

5.12

One member emphasised the risk of taking conflicting legal advice and the
implications of then making decisions based on that. It was explained that the
Council’s legal team provided advice and occasionally external advice was sought.
A member commented on the importance of recognising the risks associated with
legal advice. It was important to have an audit trail in place for decision makers.

6.

ANNUAL OVERVIEW OF NEED AND COUNCIL PERFORMANCE

6.1

Rob Ayliffe provided an overview of demand and performance key issues and
trends.

6.2

Members noted the increase in the number of children in care in Gloucestershire
and that 45% of care leavers aged 19-21 ended up as not in employment,
education or training in 2020. The increase in children in care created a significant
pressure on council resources. The Council also benchmarked high compared to
peers for the rate of children in need and children on a child protection plan.

-3-

Page 3

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

6.3

The Committee were shown the numbers packages of ongoing care for older
people and those with a physical disability (including Covid-19 funded individuals),
alongside the 2021/22 budget. Long term successes in preventing increased
demand in this area could be affected by the challenges going forward such as
Covid-19.

6.4

Members recognised that between 2018 and 2043 the projections showed a 16.6%
growth in population as a whole with a 52.5% growth in over 65s. In line with this
there were projected to be a significant increase in those over 65 with dementia by
2043. One member queried the impact in medical advances that could affect the
number of people with dementia.

6.5

There was discussion around the Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service
improvement journey since 2009.One member noted the introduction of additional
fire safety inspections and then the recent drops in this due to the pandemic.

6.6

Members were informed of the transformational future infrastructure projects in
Gloucestershire including the M5 Junction 10 improvements, M5 Junction 9 and
A46 Improvement Scheme, the A417 Missing Link, Spherical Tokamak for Energy
Production Fusion Project, the Mass Rapid Transit Scheme and B4063 Cheltenham
– Gloucester Cycle Scheme. One member raised cyber central as an important
scheme.

6.7

In relation to Housing growth, it was estimated there would be 32,000 new homes
by 2031 and 97,000 by 2051. Members noted that housing needs could be different
with household size projected to decrease and there being an older demographic.

6.8

Although the long term trend for new school places was relatively flat there were
peaks and troughs over the short term with school capacity not necessarily in the
right places.

6.9

Members were provided with the projected trajectory for carbon emissions showing
continuing reductions, both in the County Council’s own emissions and for the
County. The latter would require a step change and acceleration in improvement to
achieve target for 2045.

6.10

The Committee were shown details of the number of safety defects repaired on
Gloucestershire highways since April 2019. One member raised concern about the
highways indicators stating that they were not fit for purpose. One member noted
the increase in 28 days defects on the graph in 2021. Officers outlined that the
pattern of weather was a factor. Some members criticised the number of potholes
on Gloucestershire’s roads. Members were reminded that there had been a detailed
discussion at Environment Scrutiny Committee on this. One member commented
on the financial position of backlog of repairs as a good indicator.

6.11

Members noted the economic impact of Covid-19 with increased unemployment.
The Committee recognised the implications of Covid and ongoing complications
which were challenging for the health sector.

-4-

Page 4

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

6.12

New data was provided relating to where people were spending their time and
showed the changing lifestyle habits during the pandemic and where these may
demonstrate long term trends. Members noted the continued high period of activity
in parks and outdoor spaces. In response to a question about how the Council was
taking account of these changing patterns, it was explained that the local resilience
forum and it was important not to draw too many conclusions until things settled.
Partners would be included in discussions around the implications of these changes
and how that would feed into the wider strategies.

6.13

12 neighbourhoods in Gloucestershire were in 10% most deprived nationally with
3.1% of Gloucestershire’s population living in those areas. One member asked
whether deprivation factors could be compared to understand what was causing a
particular area to be high. It was explained there was a large amount of data
available to understand those drivers and this would be presented to the Committee
under the item requested earlier in the meeting.

6.14

In summary consideration needed to be given to how the data provided would affect
corporate resources and feed into the decisions being made. Members noted that
the information provided would help form the basis of questions at the budget
scrutiny session in January 2022.

7.

STRATEGIC PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT REPORT - 1ST QUARTER
2021/22

7.1

Rob Ayliffe provided members with an overview of performance at the end of
quarter 1 for 2021/22. This included areas of achievements and successes, areas
of focus and concern and long term issues. In addition there were specific
indicators which demonstrated the impact of Covid.

7.2

For Children’s Services and initial response to risk, there had been a drop off in
quarter 3 and 4 but was showing improvement in the 1st quarter in 2021/22. In
terms of repeat work such as re-referrals and repeat children plans and
readmissions into care there was signs of sustained improvement.

7.3

For Adult Services review and reassessments performance had dropped off in the
first quarter and this was something they would be looking at in detail ahead of
reporting to committee again.

7.4

Members noted the risk register attached to the report. The risk around adult social
care independence sector had risen in light of instability in the market. In addition,
the cumulative impact of service pressures due to the impact of Covid had also
seen an increased risk.

7.5

One member felt there was a downward trend of the areas that were on target. In
response it was stated that this was a similar position to the previous year and that
for some indicators there was additional projections that suggested that they would
move back on track over the course of the year.

-5-

Page 5

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

7.6

One member expressed concern that highways measures were outlined as an
achievement. In response it was explained that the measures suggested that for
repairing those safety defects performance was good. It was acknowledged that
this was not the only factor to consider in relation to highways and that the
response from residents suggested performance was not at the level the indicators
were showing. Members discussed the issues in highways, noting communication
challenges and the need to manage expectations. It was suggested by one
member that the focus of the team was on technical measures rather than customer
service. One member raised concerns about the time taken for residents to have
responses to the tickets raised. It was confirmed there was a satisfaction measure
in the data set but the target needed reviewing.

7.7

In relation to renewable energy, one member asked that the targets be provided on
the slides. In addition it was confirmed that the fluctuation of targets was due to
seasonality.

8.

CORPORATE RESOURCES PERFORMANCE REPORT

8.1

Steve Mawson introduced the Corporate Resources Performance Report.

8.2

Members noted the details in the report around the activities being taken in ICT to
modernise and stabilise critical infrastructure. Continual monitoring was showing
that there had been fewer incidents.

8.3

There had been a number of projects related to agile working, such as the agile
toolkit for managers to handle the key areas and questions for their teams. A pulse
survey had been undertaken, specifically around returning to work, and the data
was showing an overall position of staff wanting to return two to three days a week.
One member highlighted the importance of measuring performance as agile
working was being introduced. There was a discussion around children’s social
care workers and the requirements they had.

8.4

There was no statutory requirement for social distancing, but some measures have
been kept in place because that is what staff had said they wanted. In addition
consideration was being given to meeting rooms and what requirements were
needed for hybrid meetings. Details were provided on the software that could be
used in meeting rooms and keeping this as flexible as possible.

8.5

One member was concerned about the performance and financial costs of
dispersed working and wanted to ensure that the right measures were in place to
understand this. Officers explained that it was important to understand service
needs when considering more agile working. It was also important to look after staff
and have a discussion with them on what worked for the individual along with the
requirements of the service.

8.6

One member suggested that when officers were employed who did not live in the
County there were difficulties in not being able to meet face to face or show them
-6-

Page 6

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

issues on the ground. It was important to find the right balance between this and
remote working and to capture the benefits of more flexible working.
8.7

One member noted that schools were not included in the carbon emission figures,
regardless of whether they were community schools under the responsibility of the
Council, or Academy schools that were not. In response it was stated that all
emissions data was based on a historic baseline, every time a school moved to
become an academy it would be removed from the emissions data and that would
show a reduction in overall emissions that would not have been under the Council’s
control. For that reason all were excluded so that changes in emissions were the
result of action taken by the Council.

9.

FINANCIAL MONITORING REPORT

9.1

Paul Blacker introduced the financial monitoring report outlining that the current
forecast of the year end revenue position against the revenue budget of £483.008
million based on forecasts in July 2021 was an overspend of £6.743 million.

9.2

The largest overspend was in Childrens and Families as detailed within the report.
Regular meetings were held with the finance team to get this under control.

9.3

In relation to Covid-19 grants, they would be spent according to the terms of the
grant.

9.4

The Council was on track to achieve over 80% of savings targets for 2021/22 with
some slippage but they would still be achieved.

9.5

One member questioned the transfer of developer contribution to the cycle track to
A435 project. It was explained that this was a reattribution of funding between two
existing schemes. The schemes were interdependent – the cycleway would not be
fully useable until the capacity project was completed. This was a matter of
programme management and sequencing, rather than assigning priority to one
scheme over the other.

9.6

One member queried the increase in the waste capital budget detailed in the report.
A response would be provided.
ACTION
Steve Mawson

9.7

One member noted the performance drop in supporting those people with alcohol
or opium abuse and queried the underspend in the budget area. It was noted that
the pandemic had caused challenges but that was more reason to provide them
with as much support as possible. In response it was explained that the indicator
was related to those who had received treatment but then had not completed and
this was likely in relation to the challenges in the pandemic. It was suggested that
this was not a resource related drop off in performance. In relation to the
underspend, there would be some deliberate carry forward to future years.

-7-

Page 7

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

9.8

There was a detailed discussion on the challenges in the Children and Families
budget with it understood that demand was continuing to grow. Members noted the
success of Trevone House but some expressed frustration over the same financial
challenges. It was explained that there were plans to build more in house provision,
but it was also important to put in place case and demand management. The point
was raised about not having Covid funding in future years and the additional
challenges that would pose. There was a discussion on all the factors that needed
to be considered in relation to improving outcomes for children and moving the
Council to a good Ofsted rating.

9.9

It was recognised that additional investment could pay for social workers and might
reduce cases per social worker, but this alone would not solve issues around
quality and consistency of practice. It was stated that a ‘good’ authority would see
costs taken out of the system by reductions in demand through complex and high
cost placements.

9.10

One member queried the £2.064 million loss of income from parking and asked
whether projections were based on recovery in this area? In response it was stated
that while improvements were being seen as the County ‘opened up’ more, this was
unlikely to be back at earlier levels by the end of the financial year, if it was to return
at all.

10.

SCRUTINY REVIEW FEEDBACK

10.1

Simon Harper explained to members that the feedback from the last Council’s
discussion around scrutiny and the structure of committee’s was included for their
information within the agenda pack.

10.2

It was noted that there had now been the introduction of the Fire Scrutiny
Committee.

10.3

Members noted the extensive scrutiny work that was being carried out including a
task group on restoring our rivers. It was acknowledged that there were links
between the Health Scrutiny and Adult Social Care Committees and a significant
volume of activity across those committees.

CHAIR
Meeting concluded at 1:20pm
-8-

Page 8

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

-9-

Page 9

This page is intentionally left blank

CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MINUTES of the meeting of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on
Wednesday 13 October 2021 at 10.00 am at the Council Chamber - Shire Hall,
Gloucester.
PRESENT
Cllr Phil Awford (Chair)
Cllr Colin Hay
Cllr Stephen Hirst
Cllr Terry Hale

Cllr Chloe Turner
Cllr Jeremy Hilton
Cllr Matt Babbage
Cllr John Bloxsom

Substitutes:
Cllr Nick Housden for Cllr Dom Morris
Cllr Alastair Chambers for Cllr Andrew Gravells
Cllr Sue Williams for Cllr Andrew Miller
Cllr Alex Hegenbarth for Cllr Lisa Spivey
Cllr Roger Whyborn for Cllr Ben Evans
Apologies:
1

APOLOGIES
See above

2

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
No declarations made at the meeting.

3

CALL-IN OF CABINET DECISION

3.1

A report responding to the call-in and setting out the matters to be considered by
the Committee had been circulated before the meeting. The decision called-in had
been taken by the Cabinet on 22 September 2021:
Financial Monitoring Report 2021/22.

-1-

Page 11

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

“support a transfer of £435k developer contribution within the Highways capital
budget from Cheltenham to Bishops Cleeve Cycle Track project to the A435
Bishops Cl' to Racecourse Capacity project.”
3.2

The signatories to the call-in were:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

Cllr Paul Hodgkinson
Cllr David Willingham
Cllr Alex Hegenbarth
Cllr Ben Evans
Cllr Roger Whyborn
Cllr Jeremy Hilton

Outline the process
3.3

The Chair invited the Monitoring Officer to set out the process for the committee to
consider the call-in. By way of background it was outlined that the procedure rules
were set out in detail in the constitution and summarised in the report within the
meeting papers.

3.4

The committee was advised that members were to consider the grounds at ‘3.1’ in
the call-in notice which were:


The decision would conflict in whole or in part with any existing policy
that has been formally approved or adopted by the Council.



The Cabinet, the Leader of the Council or a Cabinet Member or
Officer under delegated powers acted contrary to the Cabinet
Procedure Rules, the Access to Information about the County
Council’s Formal Business and/or the principles of decision making
set out in Part 2, Article 7.02 of the Constitution.

The matter contravened is:
7.02.8: They should be properly reasoned and alternatives that are
discounted should be identified and the reasons for their rejection
explained adequately.

The first stage was for the committee to decide whether the committee agreed
wholly or partially with the ground for call-in. If they did agree with any of the
grounds, then there were four possible options for the committee to decide:

-2-

Page 12

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting



Support the Cabinet’s decision without comment



Make adverse comment about the way they reached their decision,
but no adverse view on the decision itself



Propose changes to the decision – modifications or an alternative to
achieve the same effect.



In exceptional circumstances, which the committee must determine,
arrange for full council to review or scrutinise the decision.

Initially the lead signatory would be asked to speak followed by the Cabinet
Member in response.
Consideration of the Call-in
3.5

Cllr Alex Hegenbarth, as a signatory to the call-in, outlined that the reasons why the
decision had been called in emphasising that this was a vital scheme and it was
important it was properly scrutinised. He explained that no reasons for the decision
were given in the report and the detail was lacking.

3.6

Cllr Lynden Stowe, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance and Change,
addressed the committee in response to the call-in notice. He introduced his
response outlined within the paper and emphasised the following key points:
 This was a pragmatic solution to a funding requirement to ensure that the
capacity scheme was progressed as soon as possible.
 There was a funding gap of nearly £9m on the cycle track scheme and this
was the subject of a bid to central government.
 The Cabinet were committed to the climate change agenda and this was
embedded within all policies.
 He felt that this was ‘borderline an abuse of the call-in process’
 He acknowledged that questions had been submitted and answers provided
from officers that he hoped would alleviate concerns.

3.7

The first stage of the process was for the committee to decide whether they agreed
wholly or partially with the grounds for call-in. The Chair invited members to make
comments before putting this question to them.
Those in favour of the call–in:

-3-

Page 13

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

 explained that it was important to scrutinise the issue. They sought
further details on when the funds would be available for the cycle track
scheme and a timeline of how it would be progressed. They were looking
for a guarantee that the scheme would be delivered.
 expressed disappointment at the lack of certainty over the scheme and
questioned statements that had been made that there were risks to the
section 106 money if the transfer was not been made.
 questioned whether the funding that was being transferred from the
scheme would be replaced.
 sought clarity over the Council’s legal obligations under the various
developer agreements.
 emphasised the importance of cabinet taking proper account and
consultation with others before making a decision of this nature.
 defended the action of calling in the decision stating that this had not led
to any funding being put in jeopardy and had allowed more information
and assurances to be received on the scheme.
 explained the level of interest and concern amongst local residents that
the cycle way scheme should progress.
 asked the Cabinet Member if he agreed with the comments made by the
Leader of Council that the call-in had placed Section 106 funding at risk.
3.8

In response, the Cabinet Member outlined that:
 a response from DfT was likely within the next 6 weeks and at that stage
more information would be available as to how the scheme could be
funded. If external funding was not sought then the possibility of a bid into
the MTFS process was being looked at.
 it was for Council to decide on the priorities for capital funding.
 personally he was keen that the cycleway scheme was progressed.
 there were contractual obligations in relation to the section 106 money
that needed to be considered.

-4-

Page 14

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

 Cabinet papers were published in advance of the meetings and there had
been opportunities to ask questions and provide challenge at that stage.
 It was important to ensure the infrastructure was in place to allow delivery
of the cycle works.
 The funding transfer of £435,000 was not a substantial amount to
replace at a later stage, it was the £9m funding gap that needed to be
resolved. Moving the funding across did not impact on the potential to
deliver the cycle scheme and actually facilitated the scheme.
 The leader had been well briefed on the issue and Cllr Stowe agreed that
the call-in process provided unnecessary delay. Should the Committee
be minded to, the potential was there for further delay to the decision that
could risk the funding.

3.9

In response to questions regarding the section 106 funding:
 Consideration needed to be given around construction time frames – the
example of the Cheltenham Gold Cup was given
 Some section 106 schemes had prescribed funds with specific
deliverables and for other schemes there was a block of funding against
a variety of priorities.
 There was a contractual obligation to deliver the capacity scheme, but
not the same obligation to deliver the cycle scheme.
 The risk that funding would have to be returned if unused therefore
related to the developer contribution of £974,084from the homeland
farms scheme

3.10

At the conclusion of the discussion:
 Some members commented that there were still concerns around how the
decision had been made and the lack of detailed information.
 One member requested a detailed report back on the bid to DfT on the
cycleway and further details of designs and plans around the scheme for
proper scrutiny.
 Other members stated that the infrastructure work was needed before any
cycleway could be put in place and that the movement of funds was a
pragmatic way forward. It was efficient and cost effective to progress both
schemes in this way.

-5-

Page 15

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

 Some members expressed their frustration that this had gone through the
call-in process and felt that this could have been raised with officers or
questions asked at Council or Cabinet.
 The Cabinet member explained that he had provided a commitment that the
cycle scheme was part of the MTFS discussion with Cabinet Members, that
members would be updated on further progress. He emphasised that the
Council had to move forward with the capacity scheme but that he was
personally keen to progress the cycle track.

3.11 Following the discussion, the committee was asked to vote on whether they agreed
wholly or partially with the ground for call-in as set out in the call-in notice.
On being put to the vote, the grounds for call-in was not accepted. Therefore it was
RESOLVED to support the Cabinet decision. The decision could therefore be
implemented immediately without being considered again by the Cabinet, the
Leader of the Council or Cabinet Member

CHAIR

The meeting ended at 11:45

-6-

Page 16

CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
WORK PLAN 2021/22
29 September
2021








Annual Overview of need and council performance
Update on the procurement toolkit - And update on single use plastics
Finance Update
Strategic Performance Report 1st quarter
Corporate Resources performance report
Scrutiny Review feedback



Review of Asset Management Strategy including landholdings and rural estate and
retained assets.
Finance Update
Dataset/performance indicators
Review of Highways Performance Indicators
Strategic Performance Report 2nd quarter
Corporate Resources performance report (including ICT)

1 December 2021

Page 17






6 January 2022

Budget Scrutiny – include a review of the Council Strategy






Finance Update
Strategic Performance Report 3rd quarter
Indices of Multiple Deprivation 2019
Corporate Resources performance report

7 April 2022



Review of upgrades and accommodation changes based on agile working
requirements

Agenda Item 4

25 February 2022

25 May 2022







Finance Update
Strategic Performance Report 4th quarter
Corporate Resources performance report

Milestones and timeframe around IT infrastructure changes and roll out of Office 365, including discussion on IT performance and
the effect on services.- for later in the year

Page 18

Review of Asset Management
Strategy including landholdings,
rural estate and retained assets
Page 19

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee
1 December 2021
Agenda Item 5

Neil Corbett – Assistant Director of Asset Management and
Property Services

Asset Management and Property
Services Plans and Policies
The management of Gloucestershire County Council’s estate is
undertaken in line with the following plans and policies:
•

Corporate Asset Management Plan 2019 – 2024

Page 20

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2111473/corporate-asset-management-plan-2019-2024_v2.pdf

•

Rural Estate Strategic Estate Plan 2016 - 2030
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2111474/rural-estate-strategic-estate-plan-2016-2030.pdf

•

Policy for the Disposal of Property 2012
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2111475/gcc-policy-for-the-disposal-of-property-2012-v5-march-2021.pdf

•

Property Acquisition Policy 2017
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2111478/gcc-property-acquisition-policy-september-2017.pdf

www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/amps

Page 21

Corporate Asset Management
Plan 2019-2024

Corporate Asset Management Plan 2019-2024
Approved by Cabinet 24th April 2019
Sets out key objectives and supporting principles that will be adopted in
management of GCC’s estate
Page 22

Ambition
•
•
•

Have a strategic approach to asset management based on an analysis of need
to deliver strategic priorities, service needs and intended outcomes
Manage the Council’s portfolio to ensure that sites are fit for purpose and
provide value for money
Maximising opportunities to share space to facilitate service integration,
minimise running costs and generate capital receipts and to work with the
community and voluntary sector to utilise the estate, where appropriate

Corporate Asset Management Plan 2019-2024
Objectives

Page 23

1. To plan and manage property as a corporate resource for the benefit of the Council
and the people it serves.
2. To use our knowledge of the estate and of our services to provide the right property
to meet current needs and to anticipate, respond and be flexible to future demands.
3. To support agile working and to promote ‘Worksmarter’ initiatives.
4. To manage and maintain property effectively, efficiently and sustainably.
5. To optimise financial return and commercial opportunities and to use land and
buildings to stimulate development and growth.
6. To promote joint working where it will provide benefit for service delivery and in
securing efficiencies.

Page 24

GCC Land and Buildings
Current overview of the extent of our property estate by asset type:

Page 25

ASSET TYPE

NUMBER OF SITES 2021

Schools - Primary (Infant and Junior)
Schools - Secondary
Schools - Special
Fire Stations

251 (59 Academy
41 (36 Academy)
10 (5 Academy)
21 (4 PFI)

Libraries
Office space buildings
Tenanted Farms
Depots

36 (5 Community)
22
60 (7129 Acres / 2885 HA)
7

Travellers Sites
Archives
Park and Ride

4
2
2

Coroners

1

Corporate Asset Management Plan 2019-2024
Actions completed

Page 26

•
•
•
•
•
•

ORG1 – Review and improve Corporate Landlord approach
ORG2 – Review and refine Capital Project governance and prioritisation
ORG4 – Supporting regeneration and growth
STRAT2 – Define the next steps in the agile working programme
PROP2 – Improve property data collection and quality; archive and dispose of
expired or non-relevant data
PROP4 – Continue to collaborate with the One Public Estate programme

Corporate Asset Management Plan 2019-2024
Achievements since 2019

Page 27

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Adopted Corporate Landlord model
£108m Capital Receipts achieved since 2011
£3.977m One Public Estate Grant Funding to support One Gloucestershire Estate initiatives
Shire Hall refurbishment
Agile Working
Barbican Reception
Shire Hall Hub
Collaborative working with strategic partners (District Council and Health)
New Quayside House (relocation of two GP practices and pharmacy)
Re-purposing of buildings e.g. Trevone House, Gloucester (semi-independent
accommodation for young people in care)

Quayside House, Gloucester
Two GP practices (to serve 18,000
patients), pharmacy, office space and
car parking

Trevone House, Gloucester
Specialist support and semi-independent
accommodation for vulnerable young care
leavers

Page 28

Gloucester Contact Centre

Rural Estate land at Moreton-in-Marsh
Outline planning consent secured for 67 dwellings

Page 29

Corporate Asset Management Plan 2019-2024
Work in progress
•

Review of Estate

Page 30

• Service Property Plans
• Rationalisation of buildings
• Carbon reduction

•
•
•

Agile working
£47 million Capital Receipt 4 year target (2021/22 to 2024/25)
Land acquisitions for highway schemes - M5 J10 and Arle Court

Page 31

Rural Estate Strategic Estate
Plan 2016-2024

Rural Estate Strategic Estate Plan 2016-2030
Approved by Cabinet 20th April 2016
Objectives
•
Page 32

•
•
•
•
•

Remains a contributor towards local food production, sustainability objectives and
to the county economy
Retention of core estate of 5,600 acres down from 6,400
Continuance of provision of services with 40 farms identified down from 50
Programmed Investment Strategy in retained estate as highlighted within MTFS
February 2016
Programmed realisation of development opportunities across estate
Capital receipts will contribute towards MTFS savings and towards provision of
core Council services

Rural Estate Strategic Estate Plan
Estate Rationalisation

Page 33

2011

2021

3430 Ha (8475 Acres)

2885 Ha (7129 Acres)

84 Equipped Farms

60 Equipped Farms

63 “Other” Lettings

35 “Other” Lettings

(grazing licences/remote land)

(grazing licences/remote land)

147 Total Lettings

89 Total Lettings

Rural Estate Strategic Estate Plan
Achievements
•
•
•

Page 34
•
•
•
•

Investment in carbon accounting and sustainable service provision
Progression of Biodiversity Plan
Half of all GCC Holdings in Countryside Stewardship, the pre-cursor to the Environmental Land
Management Scheme. Applications in 2020/21 including, but not limited to:
• Management of additional 14,500m hedgerows;
• 6,000+ hedging plants to gap up existing hedgerows;
• 20,000+ hedging plants to create new hedgerows;
• 213 Acres put into legume & herb rich swards;
• 49 Acres entered into flower rich or winter bird food strips;
• 120 trees planted as part of orchard restoration schemes.
Six re-lettings completed 2020/21, with increasing focus on carbon management.
Partnership Working: eg FWAG Natural Capital Mapping; Princes Trust; and Agri-tech Hub.
Capital Receipts £49,942,971
Annual Revenue Receipt £800,000

Achievements
Inter-departmental collaborations
•
Page 35

•

•
•

Rural estate land allocated to facilitate new M5 Junction road scheme
to take place
Rural estate land previously identified as potential development site
surrendered to enable provision of new school at Leckhampton with
further land allocated for Bio-diversity Net Gain
Rural estate land being utilised to store and act as collection point for
20,000 trees (Funded via Woodland Trust)
Rural estate land and buildings made available for development at
Moreton, Nastend, Leighterton, Mickleton, Sandhurst, and Uckington.

GCC Rural Estate land for new
Secondary School, Cheltenham
Under construction – opening September 2022

Page 36
Artist’s impression

GCC Rural Estate land at
Nastend, Stonehouse
GCC land forms part of development for
1,350 homes and new primary school

Land for M5 Junction 10
Improvement Scheme

North West Cheltenham
Proposed development of 4,115 homes, new
secondary school, 2 new primary schools, district
centre and transport hub

Page 37

Rural Estate Strategic Estate Plan
Challenges
• Brexit and associated trade deals
Page 38

• Legislative Changes : Agriculture Bill and Environment Bill
• Cop26 / Climate Change / Net Zero
• Changes to Subsidy Regime, i.e. from Basic Payment Scheme to
Environmental Land Management Scheme.
• Biodiversity Net Gain

Summary
•
•
•
Page 39

•
•
•
•
•

Corporate estate rationalisation
Rural estate rationalisation as identified in Rural Estate Strategy Plan
Promotion of development sites in District Council’s Local Plans,
Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment and Strategic
Assessment of Land Availability e.g. Wisloe Garden Community,
Cambridge, Stroud
Supporting strategic infrastructure projects
Strategic property/land purchase and acquisitions
Climate change, carbon management and biodiversity action plan
Creation of locality hubs
One Public Estate – better use of assets with Strategic Partners

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
Overview of the Corporate Performance Dataset
1. Purpose of report:
To brief members of the committee on the corporate performance dataset
which forms the basis of the quarterly public performance reporting.
To provide members with an opportunity to identify any additional information
they need in order to support effective oversight of council-wide performance,
ahead of the review of indicators for the new Council Strategy.
2. Background:
At the COSC meeting in September 2021, Members requested a briefing
report on the current Corporate Performance Dataset (CPD) of indicators
which form the basis of quarterly performance reporting to the committee.
The performance indicators that make up the CPD have been continuously
reviewed over time:






There is an annual refresh process in place, lead by the Performance
and Improvement Team and involving Heads of Service, Directors,
Cabinet Members and Scrutiny.
There is then a more in depth review every three to four years in line
with any new Council Strategy, to ensure key outcomes are connected
to our performance reporting.
Indicators are also reviewed, removed or added into the set during the
performance year as necessary – for example, when a scrutiny
committee identifies a specific gap in understanding the delivery of a
council priority.

The current dataset consists of just over 100 indicators from across the
business of the Council. About 70 of these have a target level of performance
identified. The remaining indicators are more contextual, where a target may
be inappropriate or unhelpful. The dataset is constantly adjusting in response
to new requests, changes to our services or data availability.
Recent scrutiny guidance from MHCLG emphasises the role of scrutiny in
overseeing Council performance:
“Scrutiny members should have access to a regularly available source of
key information about the management of the authority – particularly on
performance, management and risk. Where this information exists, and
scrutiny members are given support to understand it, the potential for what
officers might consider unfocused and unproductive requests is reduced

Page 41

as members will be able to frame their requests from a more informed
position.”1
3. Public Performance Dataset:
Indicators are selected with senior managers in each area of the Council in
order to provide measures that reflect our priorities and help to track
performance of our key outcomes at a corporate level.
This process has been guided by the following principles:
-

-

-

-

Focussing on indicators that reflect the Council’s strategy and
priorities; Prioritising indicators that provide oversight of impact and
outcomes, particularly where the Council is in a position to directly
influence those outcomes, rather than processes and inputs*;
Taking a risk-based approach to provide more extensive corporate
oversight of those areas of the business that are subject to external
inspection or accountability frameworks;
Providing sufficient breadth and balance across all areas of the
business;
Wherever possible, selecting indicators that are available quarterly
and in a timely fashion, so that we are able to take action in-year to
address areas of underperformance;
Using nationally recognised metrics wherever possible, for
benchmarking;
Minimising the cost of producing performance indicators by using and
re-using existing data wherever possible.

*N.B. while indicators in the CPD tend to focus on outcomes, we often provide
more detailed service level indicators as context to our analysis, or on an ad
hoc basis following Member questions.
As a result of these ongoing discussions, we have identified a current set of
measures that form the basis of a quarterly scorecard that is reported to this
committee (see annex 1 for the proposed list of measures). The purpose of
this scorecard is to provide scrutiny with a comprehensive overview of the
council’s performance and to provide assurance that performance is being
pro-actively managed and that remedial action is being taken to address
declining performance.
These will be kept under constant review to ensure they remain relevant to
the needs of scrutiny and consideration will be given to requests from scrutiny
for additional measures as and when they arise.
1 Statutory Guidance on Overview and Scrutiny in Local and Combined Authorities, Ministry of
Housing, Communities and Local Government (May 2019)

Page 42

4. Recommendations:
 That members use the CPD and accompanying risk information as the
basis for understanding, overseeing and scrutinising council-wide
performance.
 That the contents of the dataset are reviewed in line with the emerging
Council Strategy 2022-2026, in order to respond to new or emerging
issues.
 That members identify any additional areas where they require
additional information to support oversight and scrutiny, so that we can
discuss developing data with services.

Darren Skinner, Head of Planning, Performance & Improvement

Page 43

Annex 1: Current Public Performance Dataset (as at Quarter 2 2021/22)
Children’s
Services
Children’s
Services
Children’s
Services
Children’s
Services
Children’s
Services
Children’s
Services
Children’s
Services
Children’s
Services
Children’s
Services
Children’s
Services
Children’s
Services
Children’s
Services
Children’s
Services
Children’s
Services
Children’s
Services
Children’s
Services
Children’s
Services
Children’s
Services
Children’s
Services
Children’s
Services
Children’s
Services
Children’s
Services
Children’s
Services
Children’s
Services
Children’s
Services
Children’s
Services
Children’s
Services
Children’s
Services

Children open to Social Care with fewer than 3 Social Workers in 6 months
% of initial visits in time
% CiC persistently absent
% of referrals to Children's Social Care that are re-referrals within 12 months
% of children becoming the subject of a Child Protection Plan for a 2nd or
subsequent time
% of children subject to Child Protection Plans lasting 2 years or more
% contacts (all) initial decision within 24hrs
% of (single) assessments completed within 45 working days
% of children admitted to care who have previously been in care (readmissions)
% of children who have been admitted to care within 12 months of previously being
in care
% CIC reviewed in timescale
% of Children in Need who have been on a plan for 12 months or more
% of children who are fostered who are places with the in-house service
Percentage of children in care with 3 placements in the last 12 months
Percentage of children in care for 2.5 years in the same placement for at least 2
years
% of children who wait less than 14 months between entering care and moving in
with their adoptive family - Pull from scorecard until reporting clarified
% of young people aged 19-21 who were looked after aged 16 who were in
suitable accommodation
% of young people aged 19-21 who were looked after not in employment,
education or training
% of Children's Services Audits rated R.I. or better
% of young people (aged 16-17) who are not in education, employment or training
(NEET)
Number of pupils permanently excluded (all pupils)
% of pupils attending good or outstanding secondary schools
% of pupils attending good or outstanding primary schools
% of good or outstanding Early Years settings
The percentage gap between SEN pupils and Non-SEN pupils achieving expected
standard or higher at KS2 in Reading, Writing & Maths
% points gap between disadvantaged pupils and their peers at KS2
% points gap between disadvantaged pupils and their peers at KS4
Number of EHCPs

Page 44

Children’s
Services
Adult Social
Care
Adult Social
Care
Adult Social
Care
Adult Social
Care
Adult Social
Care
Adult Social
Care
Adult Social
Care
Adult Social
Care
Adult Social
Care
Adult Social
Care
Adult Social
Care
Adult Social
Care
Adult Social
Care
Adult Social
Care
Adult Social
Care
Adult Social
Care
Adult Social
Care
Adult Social
Care
Adult Social
Care
Adult Social
Care
Adult Social
Care
Prevention,
Wellbeing &
Communities
PWC

% of pupils attaining grades 9 -5 in English and Maths
% of ASC contacts signposted or closed
Permanent admissions to residential and nursing care (18-64s)
Permanent admissions to residential and nursing care (65+)
Adults with learning disabilities in settled accommodation
% of ongoing clients who have had a review/reassessment of their needs in the
last 12 months
% of referrals for an AMHP assessment that led to support or protection being put
in place
Average number of working days to complete a FAB assessment
Average waiting time for a Care Act Compliant Assessment (in working days)
% of GCC Commissioned Providers judged to be Good or Outstanding by CQC
% of all ASC Contacts with a decision within 1 working day
% of Individuals with a second or subsequent AMHP assessment with 12 months
% of S42 Enquiries closed this quarter where risk was removed or reduced
Adults (18 - 69) contact with secondary mental health services in settled
accommodation
Delayed transfers of care from hospital which are attributable to Adult Social Care
% of clients who need no long term care after their period of reablement
Average waiting time for a Carers Assessment in weeks.
Overall satisfaction of people who use services with their care and support
Carer reported quality of life
% of clients with more than 1 episode of reablement in the last 12 months
Proportion of adults with a learning disability in paid employment
SPD6 % of S42 Enquiries open for more than 26 weeks
% of pregnant smokers achieving a 4-week quit
% of children who are overweight at reception

PWC

% of children who are overweight at KS2

PWC

Proportion of adult alcohol misusers who have left treatment successfully
Proportion of all Opiate Users left treatment successfully not representing in six
months
Proportion of all Non-Opiate Users in treatment, not representing 6 months after
completion
Suicide rate per 100k population
Number of Healthy Lifestyle customers who achieve a significant risk factor
improvement

PWC
PWC
PWC
PWC

Page 45

PWC
Community
Safety
CS

% of cases referred for contract tracing that have been completed
Number of accidental dwelling fires
% of Safe and Well visits undertaken to those in high risk groups

CS

No. of Safe and Well visits undertaken

CS

Average response time to dwelling fires

Economy
Environment
&Infrastructure
EE&I

Total unemployment ralated benefit claimants as % of 16 - 64 year olds

EE&I

No of people killed or seriously injured on the county's roads
Value of Planning Agreements signed to support provision of Highways &
Education/Libraries
% of premises with next generation broadband access NGA Superfast

EE&I

No.of light-touch business interactions supported by the Growth Hubs

EE&I

Council Carbon Emissions, buildings & transport (exc schools) Tonnes of CO2

EE&I

Renewable energy generation (kWh) from the Council Estate (exc schools)

EE&I

Percentage of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting

EE&I

% of waste diverted from landfill

EE&I

Residual household waste per household (kgs)

EE&I

% of the local authority's principal roads where maintenance should be considered

EE&I

% of Non-principal classified roads where maintenance should be considered

EE&I

% of structural maintenance programme delivered

EE&I

2-hour defects repaired on time

EE&I

24-hour defects repaired on time

EE&I

28-day defects repaired on time

EE&I

EE&I

SPD26 Overall resident satisfaction with Highways network
Percentage delivery of the annual gully emptying programme delivered (as
published on the website)
Net power production (MWhr) by the Gloucestershire Energy From Waste facility

EE&I

Materials recovered for recycling at the Energy from Waste facility (tonnes)

EE&I

EE&I

Corporate
Resources
Corporate
Resources
Corporate
Resources
Corporate
Resources
Corporate
Resources
Corporate
Resources
Corporate
Resources
Corporate
Resources
Corporate
Resources
Corporate
Resources
Corporate
Resources

Funds raised from asset sales (capital receipts)
No. of critical (P1) ICT incidents occurring
Employee engagement index
Days lost to Sickness per FTE (excluding Schools)
GCC Turnover rate (staff leaving as a % of all staff)
Turnover rate of adults social workers and senior practitioners
Turnover rate of children's social workers and senior practitioners
% of council savings portfolio achieved
Days lost to Sickness per FTE (excluding Schools)(in quarter)
% of appraisals completed
Forecast revenue budget outturn percentage variance

Page 46

Corporate
Resources
Corporate
Resources
Corporate
Resources
Corporate
Resources
Corporate
Resources
Corporate
Resources
Corporate
Resources
Corporate
Resources
Corporate
Resources
Corporate
Resources

No of complaints upheld by the LGSCO with a report issued
Number of RIDDOR reportable incidents
Number of reportable security incidents
% of FOI/EIR requests responded to on time
% of SAR requests responded to on time
Total audit recommendations outstanding beyond target date
Days Lost to sickness per FTE (excluding Schools) (Rolling Year)
Number of SARs
Number of EIRs/FOIs
Number of Information Security breaches

Page 47

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
Corporate Performance Data Set 2021/22 – Highways
Background
At the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee Meetings on 24th June 2021 and
29th September 2021, Members raised serious concerns about the limited sight that
indicators within the Corporate Performance Data Set provided in relation to Highways,
and in particular, that they portray a level of performance that is incongruous with their
experience on the ground. The chair of the Environment Overview and Scrutiny
Committee was particularly vocal and critical.
The Corporate Performance Data Set currently includes 8 indicators relating to
Highways:









% of 2 hour emergency repairs made on time
% of 24 hour defects repaired on time
% of 28 day defects repaired or made safe in time
% of structural maintenance programme delivered
% delivery of the annual gully emptying programme delivered
% of principal roads where maintenance should be considered
% of the non-principal classified roads where maintenance should be considered
% Overall resident satisfaction with highways network

All of these indicators have performed better than target since Quarter 1 2020/21, with
the exception of the structural maintenance delivery programme which was within
tolerance of target at the end of Quarter 4 2020/21 (99%).
It is the view of scrutiny members that these indicators do not provide sufficient
information about the condition of Gloucestershire’s roads or adequately convey risks
and pressures faced by the organisation in this area of service given the positive
performance levels reported. While resident satisfaction with highways is similar to other
local authorities nationally, it was felt that there was a disparity between reported
performance of maintenance and repair and public levels of satisfaction with the
service.
Based on feedback that Members receive from their constituents, more information on
the timeliness of response to defect repairs was requested. In addition, Members raised
a challenge in relation to the level at which the target is set for resident satisfaction with
the highways network.
Proposed changes to the Corporate Performance Data Set
In response to the request for greater and more representative oversight of Highways
performance, the performance team has worked with the Head of Highways and her
senior management team to propose the following additions to the Corporate
Performance Data Set:

Page 49



Number of Winter maintenance salt runs completed
Throughout the Winter and Spring of 2020/21, a significantly higher number of
defects were repaired compared with previous years, indicating greater
deterioration of the road network. A much higher number of Winter maintenance
salt runs were also carried out last Winter (276 compared to an average of 205 in
the previous two Winter seasons). To supplement the existing indicators in the
data set relating to timeliness of emergency and defect repairs, information will
be provided in the narrative regarding the number of defects repaired overall and
within time. It is also proposed that an indicator relating to the number of Winter
maintenance salt runs is added to the data set for completion during Quarter’s 3
and 4 when colder whether is expected. This will provide increased sight of both
delivery performance and the condition of Gloucestershire’s roads over time.
Staffing resources crew gritters carrying out winter maintenance alongside dayto-day repair work, which can impact the availability of resources for road repairs
during the same period. Sight of Winter maintenance salt run activity will
therefore also support understanding of variations in defect volumes and
timeliness of repairs.



Average number of additional days to complete overdue 28 day defects
It is proposed that an indicator is added to the data set which relates to
timeliness of overdue 28 day defect repairs, as these are the repairs which most
commonly impact resident satisfaction in terms of delivery performance and
perceptions of the condition of Gloucestershire’s roads. It should be noted that
the contractual target for 28 day repairs is that 95% are completed within time.
The number of overdue repairs will be included in the narrative for contextual
information.
This will provide Members with oversight of the volume of repairs which are
not attended within the target timeline (95% within 28 days) and of overall
repair timescales for all defects. Combining this data with the narrative to be
provided around the overall volume of repairs, will support a greater
understanding of whether current resources are sufficient to maintain
Gloucestershire’s roads to a good condition in a timely way.



% of unclassified roads where maintenance should be considered
It is proposed that the percentage of unclassified roads where maintenance
should be considered is reinstated in the data set, alongside data on principal
and non-principal roads which form the priority focus for repair and structural
maintenance. This would better reflect the condition of the whole road network
in Gloucestershire and the challenges of maintaining it to a good standard.



Number of defects reported that do not meet the criteria for repair
Defects repaired on the network come from two main sources – scheduled
inspections (making up the larger proportion) and customer reports. Customer
reports are attended by safety inspectors to assess for repair in accordance
with our stated policy. There are defects which are reported to us that we do
not repair because they don’t meet the intervention criteria. It is proposed to
investigate the data on these to consider whether an indicator in the data set
would support Member and public understanding of why some defect work
does not result in a repair.

Page 50

In addition to the above, it has been requested that the total number of defects
repaired be included in the comments section for each of the 3 existing indicators:
 % of 2 hour emergency repairs made on time
 % of 24 hour defects repaired on time
 % of 28 day defects repaired or made safe in time
Timeline
The Leader and Cabinet Member for Highways will be consulted on the proposed
changes at the Economy, Environment and Infrastructure Finance, Performance and
Risk meeting on the 15th November 2021.
Where it is already available, data will be included in the Quarter 2 performance
presentation and performance and risk scorecard which will be provided to the
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee for their meeting on 1st December 2021.
From Quarter 3, data and a broader narrative relating to Highways will be included in
the performance report and scorecards provided to the Economy, Environment and
Infrastructure Senior Leadership Team, Corporate Leadership Team, Finance,
Performance and Risk meetings, Environment Scrutiny Committee and Corporate
Overview Scrutiny Committee in line with the Corporate Performance Management
Framework.

Page 51

This page is intentionally left blank

Overview of Corporate Performance
Quarter 2
2021/22
Agenda Item 8

Page 53

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee
1st December 2021
Presented by Rob Ayliffe

Overview of performance at the end of Quarter 2
Proportion of Corporate Performance Indicators On or Ahead, Within
Tolerance or Behind Target
2021/22 Q2

56% (39)

2021/22 Q1

9% (6)

51% (36)

36% (25)

13% (9)

37% (26)

Page 54

2020/21 Q4

57% (37)

9% (6)

34% (22)

2020/21 Q3

58% (38)

9% (6)

33% (22)

2020/21 Q2

63% (40)
0%

On or Ahead of Target

20%

13% (8)
40%

60%

Within Tolerance (0 - 5% Worse than Target)

33% (16)
80%

100%

≥ 5% Worse than Target

Overview of performance at the end of Quarter 1
Areas of Focus/Potential Concern

•
•
•
•
•

Council carbon emissions and renewable energy generation
GCC Adult Social Care providers judged Good/Outstanding
Long-term placements stability for children in care
Children’s readmissions to care
Children’s case audits judged Requires Improvement or
better
• Young people not in education, employment or training
(NEET)
• Gulley emptying and structural maintenance programme

• Timeliness of Adult Social Care Financial Assessment & Benefits
• Permanent Admissions to residential & nursing care homes (65+
year olds)
• Timeliness of adult social care reviews/reassessments
• Timeliness of initial decisions and initial visits for children
following contact and referral
• Delivery of Savings programme
• Annual staff professional development reviews
• Recruitment and Retention in certain sectors

Impact of COVID

Long-Term Issues

• Permanent admissions to residential & nursing care homes
(18-64 year olds)
• Adults successfully leaving alcohol, opiate and non-opiate
treatment
• Timeliness of birth and death registrations
• Safe and Well visits

• Short-term placement stability for children in care
• Re-referrals and repeat child protection plans
• Children in care persistently absent from school and
Employment, Education and Training levels for care leavers
• Subject Access Requests responded to within legal time limit
• Provider failure
• Inability to support independent living, due to lack of home care
services capacity

Page 55

Achievements/Successes

Children’s Services – Initial Response to Risk
100%
92%
90%

83%

86%
80%

84%

82%

86%

81%
83%
80%

70%

88%

79%

81%
70%

Page 56

67%

60%

83%

50%
Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21
Initial Decisions

Q4 2020/21
Initial Visits

Q1 2021/22
Single Assessments

Q2 2021/22

Childrens Services – Repeat Work (Smaller is Better)
50%
40%
33%
29%

30%

29%

30%

Page 57

10%
10%

27%

24%

24%

29%

27%

20%

28%

9%

7%

4%

3%

0%
Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21
Re-referrals

Q4 2020/21
Repeat CP

Q1 2021/22
Readmissions

Q2 2021/22

Children and Young People’s Education, Employment and Training
(smaller is better)
All Gloucestershire young people (16-17 yrs)

School-aged Children in Care and Care Leavers (19-21 yrs)

5%

100%

4%

80%

3%

60%

48.3%

48.3%

51.9%

Page 58

4.5%

2%

1%

51.6%

45.1%

38.6%

40%
2.4%

2.6%

2.5%

2.3%
1.3%

20%

0%
Q2 2020/21 Q3 2020/21 Q4 2020/21 Q1 2021/22 Q2 2021/22 Statistical
Neighbour
Average
2019/20

% of Young People (academic age 16-17) not in education, employment or
training (NEET)

0%

14.8%

18.1%

20.0%

22.0%

Q2
2020/21

Q3
2020/21

Q4
2020/21

Q1
2021/22

18.4%
10.1%

Q2
Statistical
2021/22 Neighbour
Average
2019/20
Persistent Absence Children in Care
Target
Care Leavers aged 19-21 years NEET

Adult Services – OP/PD Balance of Care

Page 59

Adult Services – Reviews/Reassessments
100%

Migration to new case management
system. Performance in Q1 may have
been impacted by understanding of
new system processes and recording
issues

80%
60%

Page 60

40%
20%

48.0%

52.0%

53.0%

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Q4 2020/21

43.6%

52.1%

0%
Q1 2021/22

% of service users who have had a review/reassessment of their needs within the last 12 months

Q2 2021/22

Target

Prevention, Wellbeing and Communities – Drug and Alcohol
Treatment
50%
40%

37.7%

38.8%

39.9%

38.8%

37.4%

36.8%
31.2%

30%

32.8%

33.4%

35.1%

32.5%

32.2%

28.1%

25.9%
Alcohol

29.8%

25.7%

20%

25.3%
21.3%

Page 61

10%
0%

7.5%

7.5%

7.4%

6.2%

5.9%

Q1
2019/20

Q2
2019/20

Q3
2019/20

Q4
2019/20

Q1
2020/21

5.4%
Q2
2020/21

4.6%
Q3
2020/21

5.1%
Q4
2020/21

4.4%
Q1
2021/22

Opiate
Non-Opate

EE&I – Renewable Energy Generation and Carbon
Emissions
Renewable energy (Kwh) from the Council
estate (excl. schools) (In-Quarter)

Council carbon emissions, buildings and
transport (excl. schools) tonnes of CO2e (InQuarter)

20,000,000

4000
3000
2,029 2,193

Tonnes of CO2e

Target (Smaller is Better)

Q1 2021/22

Q4 2020/21

1,118
Q3 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q1 2020/21

1,119 1,069
Q4 2019/20

0

1,550 1,297
Q3 2019/20

1000

2,460 2,398

Q2 2019/20

Q1 2021/22

Q4 2020/21

Q1 2020/21

Q4 2019/20

0

2000

Q1 2019/20

12,666,806

14,882,693
Q3 2020/21

17,850,102

16,125,919

11,521,098
Q3 2019/20

Q2 2020/21

44,086
Q2 2019/20

13,692,113

21,842

5,000,000

Q1 2019/20

10,000,000

16,467,661

Page 62

15,000,000

EE&I – Birth and Death Registrations
Timeliness of Death Registrations

Timeliness of Birth Registrations
100%

100%

80%

80%

60%

60%
91%
62% 60% 56%

Target

70% 76%

Deaths registered within 5 days

61% 69%

Target

Q2 21/22

Q1 2021/22

Q4 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q1 2020/21

Q4 2019/20

Q3 2019/20

Q2 21/22

Q1 2021/22

Q4 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q1 2020/21

Q4 2019/20

Q3 2019/20

0%

Births registered within 42 days

87% 85% 86% 82% 79%

20%

22% 20%
0%

40%

Q2 2019/20

20%
Q2 2019/20

Page 63

99% 100% 99%
40%

Page 64
1

1.25
1.48
1.50

Q2 2021/22

Statistical Neighbours
(Quarterly Average
2019/20)

1.72

Q1 2021/22

Q4 2020/21

0
0.82
0.93

Q3 2020/21

0.27
0.91

Q2 2020/21

2

Q1 2020/21

2.13

Q4 2019/20

2.24

Q3 2019/20

3

Q2 2019/20

GFRS – Rate of Safe and Well Visits per 1,000
population (In-Quarter)

5

4

Good Management – Personal Development Reviews (PDRs)
100%

80%
68.3%
60%

69.0%

50.9%

Page 65

39.4%

40%

32.7%
26.7%
20.3%

20%
9.8%

13.8%

0%
Q2 2019/20 Q3 2019/20 Q4 2019/20 Q1 2020/21 Q2 2020/21 Q3 2020/21 Q4 2020/21 Q1 2021/22 Q2 2021/22

5%

0%
0%

14.5%
16.2%

Q2 2021/22

9.9%

Q4 2020/21
Q1 2021/22

10.1%

13.0%

Q2 2020/21

22.1%

21.6%

18.1%

15.1%

11.2%

12.6%

12.6%

12.5%

Adult's Social Workers

Q3 2020/21

12.5%

Q1 2020/21

10%
13.9%

15%
12.2%

Overall Turnover - GCC

Q4 2019/20

10.4%

Q3 2019/20

9.7% 10.3% 9.2% 9.3% 9.1% 10.3%
11.6%

10.7%

20%

Q2 2019/20

20%
15.6%

25%

10.5%

25%

Q1 2019/20

15%

Q2 2021/22

Q1 2021/22

Q4 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

10%

Q1 2020/21

10.9% 10.9% 10.8%

Q4 2019/20

Q3 2019/20

Q2 2019/20

Page 66
5%

Q1 2019/20

Good Management – Turnover
Turnover of Social Workers
Children's Social Workers

Risk

Page 67

High Risks and
Changes to Risk
Scores
Page 68

Corporate Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Quarter 2 2021/22
Purpose of the report
To provide a strategic overview of the Council's performance for Quarter 2 2021/22.
The following scorecards are enclosed:

Page 69

Key to Symbols
Adult Social Care – Commissioning
Adult Social Care  Delivery
Prevention, Wellbeing & Communities
Children & Young People
Economy, Skills & Growth
Highways & Flood
Environment & Planning
Public Protection, Parking & Libraries
Leader of the Council
Deputy Leader of the Council & Finance & Change
Strategic Risk Register Summary

Page number
2
3
4
5
7
9
11
12
13
14
15
18

Prepared by the Performance and Improvement Team

1

Key to Symbols
Reporting Basis

Measure Symbols

Year to Date

Performance accumulated over the year

Rolling Year

Average performance over a 12 month
period
Performance measured once a year

Annual
Latest
Quarter
Snapshot

Performance this quarter

Forecast

Predicted position at the end of the year

Performance at a particular point in time

Risk
Likelihood

Page 70

Almost
certain
(5)
Likely
(4)
Probable
(3)
Possible
(2)
Rare
(1)

Bigger is Better
Smaller is Better
Plan is best

1
Insignificant

2
Minor

5

10

Impact/Consequence
3
4
Moderate
Major
15

20

5
Critical
25

4

8

12

16

20

3

6

9

12

15

2

4

6

8

10

1

2

3

4

5

Performance Better than Target
Performance Worse than Target
Performance significantly worse than Target
No information
Missing Target
No Value
A bigger value for this measure is good
A smaller value for this measure is good
Where it is better for performance to be on target rather than above or below

Risk Rating
(calculated by multiplying the Impact with the Likelihood of each risk)
Risk Symbols
Risk Value Increasing
Risk Value Decreasing
No Change

Level of
Risk
Low
Moderate
High

Score
16
7 – 12
13 – 25

2

Commissioning  Adult Social Care
Cllr Kathy Williams
Mental Health

% of referrals for an AMHP assessment that led to support or
protection being put in place
% of Individuals with a second or subsequent AMHP
assessment with 12 months
% of Adults receiving secondary Mental Health services in
settled accommodation

Dec20

Latest Quarter

58.5%

60.9%

60.0%

Smaller is Better

Latest Quarter

25.1%

27.1%

40.0%

n/a

Bigger is Better

Snapshot

89.0%

88.0%

85.0%

55.2%

89.0%

Comments

Comparator
Group

Bigger is Better

88.0%

Jun21

Target
Sep21

Reporting Basis Sep20

87.0%

Mar21

Actual
Sep21

Good Performance High/Low

Of the 340 AMHP Assessments completed in the
quarter, 207 resulted in detention or other support
being put in place.

n/a

Learning Disability
Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Sep20

Bigger is Better

Snapshot

Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Mar16

Bigger is Better

Annual

Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Sep20

% of GCC Commissioned Providers judged to be Good or
Outstanding by CQC

Bigger is Better

Latest Quarter

Permanent admissions 1864 to residential & nursing care
homes per 100,000 population

Smaller is Better

Rolling Year

8.9

10.8

Permanent admissions aged 65+ to residential & nursing care
Smaller is Better
homes per 100,000 population

Rolling Year

439.2

472.7

% of Adults with Learning Disabilities in settled
accommodation

% of Adults with Learning Disabilities in Employment

Dec20

79.4%

Mar21

79.2%

Mar17

79.1%

Mar18

8.7%

6.8%

Actual
Sep21

Jun21
79.1%

Mar19
6.4%

Target
Sep21

79.1%

Comments

78.0%

Actual Mar20

73.1%

Comments

3.1%

Comparator
Group

0.8% Relates to March 2020 figure

Comparator
Group
4.3%

Page 71

Adult Social Care Transformation
Dec20

Mar21

Actual
Sep21

Jun21

Target
Sep21

94.1%

92.3%

90.0%

9.7

19.4

19.1

13.8

433.4

555.9

543.7

579.2

Comments
There is one provider judged as Inadequate with a
further 34 providers judged as Requires
Improvement.
There were 71 permanent admissions in the rolling
year to the end of September 2021, slightly down on
the 72 permanent admissions in the year to June
2021. Of these 71 individuals, 34 were Physical
Disabilities (1864), 32 were Learning Disabilities and
5 were Mental Health. There remain some
inconsistencies on the way that admissions are coded
(relating to Short Breaks) which may be inflating the
overall rate slightly, however the rate is similar to
that over the same period to June 2019 (preCOVID)
and has historically been off target.
Note that June 2021 has been refreshed (from 472.7
to 555.9) to reflect retrospective cases added since
the last reporting period.

Comparator
Group
n/a

13.8

579.2

Carers
Good Performance High/Low
Average waiting time for a Care Act Compliant Assessment (in
Smaller is Better
working days)

Reporting Basis Sep20
Snapshot

Dec20
19.0

Mar21
17.0

Actual
Sep21

Jun21
14.0

15.0

17.0

Target
Sep21
30.0

Comments

Comparator
Group
n/a

3

Delivery  Adult Social Care
Cllr Carole AllawayMartin
Adult Safeguarding
Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Sep20

Dec20

Mar21

Actual
Sep21

Jun21

Target
Sep21

Comments

Bigger is Better

Latest Quarter

88.0%

87.3%

93.1%

83.3%

85.3%

85.0%

% of S42 Enquiries open for more than 26 weeks

Smaller is Better

Latest Quarter

32.5%

22.6%

32.4%

48.3%

39.1%

30.0%

Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Sep20

There were 150 closures during the Quarter. Of these
only 5 were closed where the Risk Remained,
however there were 17 closures where there was no
impact recorded.
This is an improving picture, however numbers may
still be adversely affected by LAS processes. New
processes for opening/closing of Safeguarding cases
were implemented at the start of October 2021.

% of Section 42 enquiries this quarter where the risk was
reduced or removed

Comparator
Group
84.5%

n/a

Adult Social Care
Dec20

Mar21

Actual
Sep21

Jun21

Snapshot

% of all ASC Contacts with a decision within 1 working day

Bigger is Better

Latest Quarter

% of ASC contacts signposted or closed
% of clients who need no long term care after their period of
reablement

Bigger is Better

Latest Quarter

31.0%

Bigger is Better

Latest Quarter

91.1%

Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Jun20

Smaller is Better

Rolling Year

Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Mar16

Social care reported quality of life

Bigger is Better

Annual

19.4

19.7

19.1

19.6

Carer reported Quality of Life

Bigger is Better

Annual

7.4

7.4

7.4

7.4

Page 72

% of Service Users who have had a review/ reassessment of
Bigger is Better
their needs within the last 12 months

Delayed transfers of care from hospital due to Adult Social
Care per 100,000 population

48.0%

52.0%

Target
Sep21

Comments

Comparator
Group

53.0%

43.6%

52.1%

50.0%

94.2%

93.5%

93.7%

95.0%

33.0%

33.0%

39.4%

40.9%

33.0%

n/a

85.1%

85.6%

92.7%

93.8%

85.0%

n/a

Sep20

Dec20

Actual
Jun21

Mar21

n/a
This can be broken down as 95.4% of all contacts
received via the CSC and 88.9% of all other contacts

Target
Jun21

Comments
DTOC measures were suspended on 1st March 2020
There is no data available at present.

3.50

Mar17

Mar18

Mar19

Actual Mar20

Comments
Relates to March 2020 figure. Next update due in late
19.6 2022 as ASCOF Service User Survey did not go
ahead in 2020/21 due to the COVID19 pandemic.
7.4 Relates to March 2019 figure

n/a

Comparator
Group
3.50

Comparator
Group
19.1
7.4

FAB

Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Sep20

Dec20

Mar21

Jun21

Actual Sep21

Comments

Comparator
Group

There were 588 FAB assessments completed in the
Quarter taking an average of 16.14 working days to
complete each assessment.
Average number of working days to complete a FAB
assessment

Smaller is Better

Latest Quarter

16.2

16.1

During the quarter the number of individuals pending
a FAB assessment (where the assessment had not
started) fell from 570 at the start of July to 367 at the
end of September and improvement work is ongoing
in respect of individuals who have had assessments
open for a longer period of time.

n/a

4

Prevention, WellBeing and Communities
Cllr Tim Harman
Public Health
Good Performance High/Low

Proportion of adult alcohol misusers who successfully
completed treatment and did not represent within 6 months of Bigger is Better
completion

Page 73

Proportion of all Opiate Users in treatment, who successfully
completed treatment and did not represent within 6 months of Bigger is Better
completion

Reporting
Basis

Quarter in
Arrears

Quarter in
Arrears

Jun20

Sep20

37.4%

5.9%

Dec20

36.8%

31.2%

5.4%

Actual
Jun21

Mar21

28.1%

4.6%

5.1%

Target
Jun21

25.9%

4.4%

Comments

35.0%

6.3%

5.7%

The Q4 performance is 21.3%, this is a reduction
from last quarter. Projecting forward 6 months we
are anticipating that the performance will drop further
at Q2, but will begin to slowly recover toward the end
of Q3, reflecting a change in measures taken by the
service in response to the pandemic. There are a
number of reasons for this drop, but it is primarily
driven the halt on discharges as a safety measure in
response to the pandemic. 95 further completions
would be required to bring this into the LA family
comparator top quartile.

33.2%

Bigger is Better

Quarter in
Arrears

32.2%

29.8%

25.7%

25.3%

21.3%

33.2%

% of pregnant smokers achieving a 4 week quit

Bigger is Better

Quarter in
Arrears

88.0%

83.0%

80.0%

87.0%

82.0%

70.0%

Bigger is Better

Good Performance High/Low
% of Covid19 cases referred for Contact Tracing that have
been completed

Bigger is Better

Quarter in
Arrears

Reporting Basis Sep20

Latest Quarter

513

480

Dec20

86.4%

735

Mar21

95.4%

619

Jun21

88.7%

614

Actual Sep21

36.9%

The Q1 performance is 4.4%, which is a reduction
from the previous quarter and it would require 24
further completions to bring this into the LA family
comparator top quartile. Projecting forward 6 months
we are anticipating that the performance will drop
further at Q2, but will begin to slowly recover toward
the end of Q3, reflecting a change in measures taken
by the service in response to the pandemic. There
are a number reasons for this anticipated drop, but it
is primarily driven the halt on discharges as a safety
measure in response to the pandemic.

Proportion of all NonOpiate Users in treatment, not
representing 6 months after completion

Number of customers who achieve a significant risk factor
improvement

The Q1 performance is 25.9%, this is a reduction
from last quarter. Projecting forward 6 months we
are anticipating that the performance drop further to
Q2 and will begin to slowly recover toward the end of
Q3, reflecting a change in measures taken by the
service in response to the pandemic. There are
multiple reasons for this drop including the halt on
discharges as a safety measure in response to the
pandemic. 96 further completions would be required
to bring this into the LA family comparator top
quartile.

Comparator
Group

763

n/a
The numbers achieving a significant risk factor
improvement remains steady compared to Q4.
However, the target has still not been achieved and
this is due to having no Slimming World outcomes as
the programme has been halted due to C19. The
loss of this performance data significantly impacts on
the performance of this indicator.
The service was reinstated in June 2021 and
therefore we would expect an improvement in this
indicator in Q2. HLS performance remains strong
with 478/619 (77%) of people accessing support from
the service achieving a significant improvement.

Comments
For all confirmed cases which have been through
contract tracing (either national track and trace or
86.7%
local contract tracing) with a test date between
01/07/2021 and 30/09/2021. 13.3% failed.

n/a

Comparator
Group
n/a

5

Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Sep17

Sep18

Sep19

Sep20

Actual Sep21

% Reception Children overweight including obesity

Smaller is Better

Academic Year

24.3%

23.8%

22.0%

23.7%

% Year 6 Children overweight including obesity

Smaller is Better

Academic Year

31.1%

32.1%

31.9%

32.4%

Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Dec16

Suicide rate per 100,000 Population

Smaller is Better

3Year Average

Dec17

10.8

Dec18

9.8

10.4

This is the latest published data and relates to the
academic year 2019/20. The NCMP programme was
paused in response to Covid19 and this data has
23.7% been deemed sufficient for publication but unreliable
for benchmarking purposes. The figures for the
2020/21 academic year are due to be published on 16
November 2021.
This is the latest published data and relates to the
academic year 2019/20. The NCMP programme was
32.4% paused in response to Covid19. The figures for the
2020/21 academic year are due to be published on 16
November 2021.

Actual
Dec20

Dec19

10.2

Comments

11.0

Target
Dec20

11.4

Comments
The figure reported covers the three year period
(20182020) where there were an additional 15
suicides compared to 20172019 (from 170 to 185).
The National, Regional, Comparator Group and
Gloucestershire rates have all increased since 2017
2019. Gloucestershire's rate remains broadly in line
with the National rate of 10.4 and our Comparator
Group (11.4). The South West regional rate is 11.6.

Comparator
Group

31.6%

Comparator
Group

11.4

Page 74
6

Children and Young People
Cllr Stephen Davies
Quality Assurance
Good Performance High/Low

% of audits judged as Requires Improvement (RI) or better

% of Children open to Social Care with fewer than 3 Social
Workers in 6 months

Reporting Basis Sep20

Bigger is Better

Latest Quarter

Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Sep20

Bigger is Better

Snapshot

Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Sep20

Dec20

86.0%

Mar21

87.0%

Dec20

79.3%

91.0%

Mar21

77.9%

Actual
Sep21

Jun21

89.0%

Jun21

82.3%

Target
Sep21

90.0%

Comments

91.0%

Actual Sep21

Performance improved slightly in Quarter 2 but
performance against target has changed from better
than to within tolerance of target due to a stretch
target being implemented this quarter. The target
rose from 88% to 91% to support the continuous
drive for improvement in quality of practice. However,
a higher proportion of cases audited were rated as
Requires Improvement in Q2 (52% up from 45%),
with a reduction in cases audited judged as Good or
Outstanding from 44% to 40%.

Comments

83.8%

84.4%

Comparator
Group

n/a

Comparator
Group
n/a

Contact Activity

Page 75

Dec20

Mar21

Actual
Sep21

Jun21

Target
Sep21

% of referrals to Social Care that are rereferrals within 12
months

Smaller is Better

Latest Quarter

29.6%

29.2%

29.0%

23.9%

24.4%

22.5%

% of Initial Decisions made within 24 hours for all contacts

Bigger is Better

Latest Quarter

92.4%

66.7%

79.9%

88.2%

81.2%

90.0%

% Initial visits in time

Bigger is Better

Latest Quarter

85.7%

82.3%

82.5%

79.2%

69.5%

85.0%

Comments
Inmonth, rereferrals saw a spike in July 2021 as the
schools closed for Summer (30.5%). However, in
August and September, rereferrals were better than
target at 21.9% and 21.4%. Performance has been
better than target for 4 of the last 5 months indicating
that the work localities are doing to review the
reasons for rereferrals each month is gaining
traction and beginning to impact the level of re
referrals received.
Performance remained similar and worse than target
inmonth throughout the quarter.
Performance has followed a declining trend since Mar
20 when 87.7% of initial visits were timely compared
to 69.5% in Quarter 2.

Comparator
Group

22.5%

n/a
n/a

Children in Need of Help & Protection

% of Children in Need who have been on a plan for 12 months
or more
% of Single Assessments completed within 45 working days
% of Children becoming the subject of a Child Protection Plan
for a second or subsequent time
% of Children subject to Child Protection Plans lasting 2 years
or more

% of Children who are fostered who are placed with the in
house fostering service
% of Children in Care for more than 2.5 years in the same
placement for at least 2 years
% Children in Care (CIC) reviewed in timescales
% of Children in Care with at least 3 placements in the last 12
months

Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Sep20

Smaller is Better

Snapshot

Bigger is Better

Dec20

Mar21

Actual
Sep21

Jun21

Target
Sep21

Comments

Comparator
Group

6.0%

6.0%

7.0%

5.0%

4.0%

10.0%

n/a

Latest Quarter

84.5%

83.0%

84.1%

80.9%

83.2%

87.0%

84.3%

Smaller is Better

Latest Quarter

32.8%

26.6%

28.8%

28.4%

27.4%

25.0%

23.3%

Smaller is Better

Snapshot

2.1%

3.1%

2.2%

3.2%

3.1%

2.0%

2.8%

Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Sep20

Bigger is Better

Snapshot

69.0%

66.0%

70.0%

68.0%

64.0%

70.0%

n/a

Bigger is Better

Snapshot

65.6%

64.3%

69.3%

67.0%

66.0%

65.0%

68.0%

Bigger is Better

Latest Quarter

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

99.7%

99.1%

98.0%

n/a

Smaller is Better

Snapshot

15.7%

17.9%

15.8%

15.9%

16.2%

13.0%

11.0%

Dec20

Mar21

Jun21

Actual
Sep21

Target
Sep21

Comments

Comparator
Group

7

Children in Care
% of Children who are fostered who are placed with the in
house fostering service
% of Children in Care for more than 2.5 years in the same
placement for at least 2 years
% Children in Care (CIC) reviewed in timescales
% of Children in Care with at least 3 placements in the last 12
months
% Children in Care persistently absent
% of children who have been admitted to care within 12
months of previously being in care

Dec20

Mar21

Actual
Sep21

Jun21

Target
Sep21

Comments

Comparator
Group

Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Sep20

Bigger is Better

Snapshot

69.0%

66.0%

70.0%

68.0%

64.0%

70.0%

n/a

Bigger is Better

Snapshot

65.6%

64.3%

69.3%

67.0%

66.0%

65.0%

68.0%

Bigger is Better

Latest Quarter

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

99.7%

99.1%

98.0%

n/a

Smaller is Better

Snapshot

15.7%

17.9%

15.8%

15.9%

16.2%

13.0%

11.0%

Smaller is Better

Snapshot

14.8%

18.1%

20.0%

22.0%

18.4%

5.0%

10.1%

Smaller is Better

Latest Quarter

9.8%

8.7%

3.9%

6.6%

3.4%

11.4%

11.4%

Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Sep20

Children Leaving Care

% of Young People aged 1921 who were looked after aged 16
Bigger is Better
who were in suitable accommodation
% of Young People aged 1921 who were looked after aged 16
Smaller is Better
who were not in employment, education or training

Dec20

Mar21

Actual
Sep21

Jun21

Target
Sep21

Comments

Comparator
Group

Snapshot

94.1%

93.1%

93.8%

92.4%

94.4%

95.0%

80.7%

Snapshot

51.6%

48.3%

48.3%

51.9%

45.1%

25.0%

38.6%

Youth Support

% of Young People (academic age 1617) not in education,
employment or training (NEET)

Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Sep20

Smaller is Better

Snapshot

Dec20
2.4%

Mar21
2.6%

Actual
Sep21

Jun21
2.5%

2.3%

1.3%

Target
Sep21
4.5%

Comments
NEET percentage from MI Program at end of
September (snapshot). This is significantly better than
target.

Comparator
Group
4.5%

Page 76
8

Education and Skills
Cllr Philip Robinson
Schools

Smaller is Better
Bigger is Better
Bigger is Better
Bigger is Better

Latest Quarter
Snapshot
Snapshot
Snapshot

Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Sep20

Plan is Best

Latest Quarter

Good Performance High/Low

Academic
Academic
Academic
Academic
Academic Year Ending
Reporting Basis Year Ending Year Ending Year Ending Year Ending
2020
2016
2017
2018
2019

Smaller is Better

Academic Year

49.0%

57.0%

60.0%

% points gap between disadvantaged pupils and their peers at
Key Stage 2 (achieving expected standard or above in
Smaller is Better
Reading, Writing and Maths)

Academic Year

22.0%

27.0%

28.0%

% points gap between disadvantaged pupils and their peers at
Smaller is Better
Key Stage 4 (achieving A*  C in English and Maths)

Academic Year

33.0%

17.3%

17.4%

% of pupils achieving grades 95 in English and Maths

Bigger is Better

Academic Year

Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Sep20

Rate per 1,000 of children with an Education Health and Care
Plan

The SEN/NonSEN gap  achieving expected standard or
higher at KS2 in Reading, Writing & Maths

Page 77

Value of Planning Agreements signed to support provision of
Highways & Education/Libraries (£000)

Bigger is Better

Year to Date

% of premises with next generation broadband access (NGA)
Superfast

Bigger is Better

Latest Quarter

Total Unemployment Related Benefits Claimants as % of 16 
64 year olds

Smaller is Better

Latest Quarter

8
81.0%
86.0%
91.0%

Mar21

26
81.0%
86.0%
91.0%

Dec20
23.8

Jun21

Target
Sep21

Reporting Basis Sep20

Number of pupils permanently excluded (all pupils)
% of pupils attending good or outstanding Secondary Schools
% of pupils attending good or outstanding Primary Schools
% of good or outstanding Early Years Settings

Dec20

Actual
Sep21

Good Performance High/Low

6
81.0%
86.0%
91.0%

Mar21
24.6

Jun21
25.2

47.3%

Dec20

16
81.0%
86.0%
91.7%

Mar21

26.0

Jun21

£830

95.7%

95.8%

96.3%

96.4%

3.7%

Comparator
Group
28.0

Comments

Actual Sep21

£1,130

4.6%

Comments

Due to the COVID 19 Pandemic no Key Stage 2 data
has been published for the 2019/20 academic year,
this dataset was cancelled.
Due to the COVID 19 Pandemic no Key Stage 2 data
has been published for the 2019/20 academic year,
this dataset was cancelled.
Although no data is available, the gap between the
achievement of vulnerable children (those with SEND,
disadvantaged pupils eligible for free school meals,
minority ethnic groups and children known to social
care) and their peers is a significant concern and is
expected to widen. Provision for the children and
young people most at risk has been supported in a
number of ways by schools and the Local Authority.
As GCSE results were not awarded based on a final
examination, performance is not comparable with
previous years and should be treated with caution.
55.0%
However, Gloucestershire's performance is better
compared to statistical neighbours, the South West
and the national position.

47.8%

Comparator
Group
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a

26.6

28.0%

£345

4.5%

13
81.0%
86.0%
91.0%

Actual Sep21

£366

4.8%

13
81.0%
86.0%
91.7%

Comments

Comments
1 S106 Planning Agreement for the value of £54,000
was signed in quarter 2. Contributions support the
provision of highways, transportation, education and
£54 libraries. These contributions will only become due to
the County Council on implementation of the planning
permissions and the respective trigger dates detailed
in the agreements.
96.4%
Gloucestershire's 1664 year old population claiming
an unemployment benefit has continued to reduce,
down to 3.3%. This equates to 12,725 people in
September. This is a reduction of almost 6,500
claimants since the peak in August 2020 but is
3.3%
remains higher than the level in March 2020 (7,855,
2%), continuing to reflect the impact of the pandemic
on businesses and employments. Gloucestershire's
claimant rate is better than the South West (3.6%)
and England (5.1%).

Comparator
Group

49.9%

Comparator
Group

n/a

n/a

n/a

9

Economic Growth and Planning
Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Sep20

Value of Planning Agreements signed to support provision of
Highways & Education/Libraries (£000)

Bigger is Better

Year to Date

% of premises with next generation broadband access (NGA)
Superfast

Bigger is Better

Latest Quarter

Total Unemployment Related Benefits Claimants as % of 16 
64 year olds

Smaller is Better

Latest Quarter

Dec20

Mar21

Jun21

Actual Sep21

£366

£345

£1,130

£830

95.7%

95.8%

96.3%

96.4%

4.8%

4.5%

4.6%

3.7%

Comments
1 S106 Planning Agreement for the value of £54,000
was signed in quarter 2. Contributions support the
provision of highways, transportation, education and
£54 libraries. These contributions will only become due to
the County Council on implementation of the planning
permissions and the respective trigger dates detailed
in the agreements.
96.4%
Gloucestershire's 1664 year old population claiming
an unemployment benefit has continued to reduce,
down to 3.3%. This equates to 12,725 people in
September. This is a reduction of almost 6,500
claimants since the peak in August 2020 but is
3.3%
remains higher than the level in March 2020 (7,855,
2%), continuing to reflect the impact of the pandemic
on businesses and employments. Gloucestershire's
claimant rate is better than the South West (3.6%)
and England (5.1%).

Comparator
Group

n/a

n/a

n/a

Page 78
10

Highways
Cllr Vernon Smith
Highways
Good Performance High/Low
% of 2 hour emergency repairs made on time
% of 24 hour defects repaired on time

Bigger is Better
Bigger is Better

Reporting Basis Sep20
Latest Quarter
Latest Quarter

Dec20

99.0%
99.0%

Mar21

98.0%
100.0%

Actual
Sep21

Jun21

98.0%
100.0%

100.0%
99.0%

Target
Sep21

99.0%
99.0%

Comments

96.0%
96.0%

% of 28 day defects repaired or made safe in time

Bigger is Better

Latest Quarter

99.0%

100.0%

95.0%

96.0%

97.0%

95.0%

% of structural maintenance programme delivered

Bigger is Better

Latest Quarter

73.0%

87.0%

99.0%

32.0%

61.0%

50.0%

Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Sep20

Number of Winter maintenance runs completed

Page 79

Average number of additional days to complete overdue 28
day defect repairs

Overall resident satisfaction with Highways network

Dec20

N/A

Smaller is Better

Quarterly

Smaller is Better

Quarterly

Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Dec16

Bigger is Better

Annual

Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Mar17

Mar21

30

Dec17

53.0%

Jun21

128

Dec18

52.0%

Mar18

Actual Sep21

51.0%

Mar19

52.0%

Target
Dec20

52.0%

Actual
Mar21

Mar20

Target
Mar21

Annual

2.0%

2.0%

2.0%

2.0%

2.0%

2.0%

% of the Nonprincipal classified roads where maintenance
should be considered

Smaller is Better

Annual

5.0%

5.0%

5.0%

6.0%

5.0%

5.0%

Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Mar17

% of unclassified roads where maintenance should be
considered

Smaller is Better

Annual

Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Sep20

Bigger is Better

Latest Quarter

Mar19

Mar20

13%

Actual Mar21

Comments

Comparator
Group

n/a

n/a

Comparator
Group
n/a

Comments
Road condition is based on a sample survey
undertaken in Summer 2020. Principal roads equate
to 10.5% of the road network covering 571 Km.
Road condition is based on a sample survey
undertaken in Summer 2020. Nonprincipal (classified
roads) equate to 36.2% of the road network covering
1,962 Km

Comments
Road condition is based on a sample survey
undertaken in Summer 2020. Unclassified roads
13%
equate to 53.3% of the road network covering 2,894
Km.

13%

n/a

n/a

52.0%

% of principal roads where maintenance should be considered Smaller is Better

Mar18

There has been a significant increase in 28day defect
repairs over time, rising from a quarterly average of
6,757 in 2019/20 to 7,822 in 2020/21 (up 16%) and
to 11,855 this financial year (up 52% compared to the
previous year). The increase in defects began in Q4
of 2020/21 (OctDec, 9,707). Despite this increase,
timeliness of defect repairs is better than target
(10,379 28defect repairs completed in time of
10,706).

Bad Winter last year resulted in an increase of 168%
in Winter maintenance runs (59 Sep19Apr20 to 158
N/A
Sep20Apr21). This is likely to be a significant factor
contributing to the increase that has been seen over
the last 3 quarters in 28day defect repairs needed.
In Quarter 2, there were 327 28day defects not
completed within timescale. On average, those
11.45
repairs were completed within 11.5 days of target
timescale.

Actual
Dec20

Dec19

n/a
n/a

Comments

5

Comparator
Group

Comparator
Group
2.0%

5.0%

Comparator
Group
n/a

Floods

% delivery of the annual gully emptying programme (as
published on the website)

81.0%

Dec20
97.0%

Mar21
100.0%

Jun21
32.0%

Actual
Sep21
64.0%

Target
Sep21
50.0%

Comments

Comparator
Group
n/a

11

Environment and Planning
Cllr David Gray
Climate Change
Good Performance High/Low
Council Carbon Emissions, buildings & transport (exc schools)
Smaller is Better
Tonnes of CO2e

Good Performance High/Low
Renewable energy generation (kWh) from the Councils Estate
Bigger is Better
(exc schools)

Reporting Basis Jun20
Year to Date

Sep20

1,118.52

Reporting Basis Jun20
Year to Date

Dec20

2,192.78

Sep20

13,692,113

4,228.60

Dec20

29,818,032

Actual
Jun21

Mar21
6,452.14

Mar21

44,700,725

1,118.30

Target
Jun21
1,119.00

Actual Jun21

62,753,377

Comments

Comparator
Group
3,875.00

Comments
17,006,806

Comparator
Group
n/a

Waste

Residual household waste per household (Kgs)
% of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and
composting
% of waste diverted from landfill

Page 80

Net power production (MWhr) by the Gloucestershire Energy
From Waste facility

Smaller is Better

Forecast

446

464

451

461

457

479

Bigger is Better

Forecast

52.7%

52.0%

50.9%

50.7%

51.0%

51.0%

Bigger is Better

Forecast

97.1%

97.2%

97.1%

97.4%

97.4%

92.8%

Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Jun20
27,254

Mar21

Sep20
32,143

Jun21

Target
Sep21

Reporting Basis Sep20

Bigger is Better

Dec20

Actual
Sep21

Good Performance High/Low

Dec20
29,738

Mar21
35,662

Actual
Jun21
33,491

Target
Jun21
29,000

Comments

Comparator
Group

n/a

Comments

Comparator
Group
n/a

12

Public Protection
Cllr Dave Norman
Fire & Rescue
Good Performance High/Low
% of Safe and Well visits undertaken to those in high risk
groups
Number of Safe and Well visits undertaken per 1,000
population (HFSC)
Average Response times to dwelling fires
Number of Accidental Dwelling Fires

Reporting Basis Sep20

Dec20

Mar21

Actual
Sep21

Jun21

Target
Sep21

Comments
This is positive and shows the continued work in
reaching above target to visiting the most vulnerable
in our community

Comparator
Group

Bigger is Better

Latest Quarter

86.0%

86.4%

85.3%

83.4%

83.0%

75.0%

74.0%

Bigger is Better

Latest Quarter

0.82

0.91

0.93

1.25

1.48

2.35

1.50

Smaller is Better
Smaller is Better

Latest Quarter
Latest Quarter

8.47
63

10.27
62

9.10
68

8.39
75

9.29
63

9.00
65

9.32
66

Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Sep20

Libraries

Page 81

Number of lighttouch business interactions supported by the
Growth Hubs

Bigger is Better

Dec20

Year to Date

Mar21

5

Actual
Sep21

Jun21

1

4

27

Target
Sep21

74

100

Comments
The main reason for the actual being under target is
due to the libraries and Growth Hubs reforming their
core business as the restrictions ease. There has
been tentative behaviour around customer confidence
and using the space, and facilities again. We talk
regularly with the Growth Hubs and shall reengage in
an active marketing plan to encourage footfall and
usage.

Comparator
Group

n/a

We are also in the process of opening four new
innovation labs at Tewksbury, Chipping Campden,
Cheltenham and Stroud. This partnership will work
closely with the Growth Hubs to promote the services
we have on offer.

Road Safety

Number of killed and seriously injured people

Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis

Smaller is Better

Calendar Year
to Date

Actual Apr 
Jun 20
133

Actual Jul 
Sep 20
216

Actual Oct 
Dec 20
277

Actual Jan 
Mar 20
39

Forecast
Actual Apr
Apr  Jun
 Jun 21
21
129

139

Comments Apr  Jun 21

Comparator
Group
n/a

13

Leader of the Council
Cllr Mark Hawthorne
Performance

% of Council Strategy indicators that are on or ahead of
target.

Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Sep20

Bigger is Better

Latest Quarter

75.0%

Dec20
67.0%

Mar21
66.0%

Jun21
63.0%

Actual
Sep21
64.0%

Target
Sep21
65.0%

Comments
Just under half of the indicators performing worse
than target are being impacted, at least in part, by
issues relating to the pandemic

Comparator
Group
n/a

Page 82
14

Finance / Change
Cllr Lynden Stowe
Corporate Goverance
Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Sep20

Dec20

Mar21

Actual
Sep21

Jun21

Target
Sep21

Comments

% of FOI/EIR requests responded to on time

Bigger is Better

Latest Quarter

77.0%

75.0%

76.0%

83.0%

82.0%

90.0%

% of SAR requests responded to on time

Bigger is Better

Latest Quarter

41.0%

68.0%

59.0%

60.0%

51.0%

90.0%

Page 83

Performance remains at similar level to the previous
quarter, despite there being a decrease of 27
requests received.
Further work is being done, with support from the
performance and analysis team, to improve reporting
on out of time cases.
SAR performance has seen a decrease this quarter of
21% and remains below the ICO target of 90%. The
decrease in compliance is considered to be a result
of:
Revised process regarding extensions, to
ensure they are only used in legitimate
situations as permitted by the law (meaning
more cases are now going overdue at 1 month,
rather than 3);
Ongoing capacity issues in Children's services;
and
Vacant position in the central team and
upskilling of new starters.

Number of Cases Upheld by Local Government Ombudsman
Number of reportable security incidents

n/a

n/a

Performance is being monitored by the Information
Board and measures identified that aim to improve
performance continue to be reviewed to ensure they
are fit for purpose.
Smaller is Better
Smaller is Better

Latest Quarter
Latest Quarter

Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Sep20

Plan is Best
Smaller is Better
Plan is Best

Latest Quarter
Latest Quarter
Latest Quarter

Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Sep20

% of Council Savings Portfolio Achieved

Bigger is Better

Latest Quarter

69.9%

85.9%

102.3%

80.7%

83.8%

90.0%

Forecast Revenue Budget Outturn % Variance

Smaller is Better

Latest Quarter

1.8%

0.4%

0.6%

1.7%

0.4%

0.0%

Audit recommendations outstanding beyond target date

Smaller is Better

Latest Quarter

?

9

1

26

26

0

Number of FOIs & EIRs
Number of Information Security breaches
Number of SARs

Comparator
Group

2

2

Dec20
504
263
81

4

Mar21
508
256
101

Dec20

2
1

Jun21
542
227
137

Mar21

4
0

2
14

n/a
n/a

Actual Sep21

Comments

346
249
112

285
230
104

Actual
Sep21

Jun21

Target
Sep21

Comparator
Group
n/a
n/a
n/a

Comments
Delivery of the £5.668 million of savings against a
target of £6.761 million in 2021/22 or 83.83%.
The current forecast of the year end revenue position
against the revenue budget of £483.008 million,
based on forecasts in October 2021 (Period 7) is an
overspend of £2.076 million all of which relates to non
Covid19 expenditure, as we are forecasting a
balanced position in relation to Covid19 expenditure
and income. The largest nonCovid19 variance in
Children and Families.

Comparator
Group
n/a

n/a

n/a
£176,941 achieved in Q2 (£156,691 sale of land at
Cinderford 09/07/2021 and £20,250 sale of land at
Northleach 12/08/2021).
Capital Receipts achieved to date £211,941.
Sales agreed and being progressed by Legal Services

15

Finance

% of Council Savings Portfolio Achieved

Bigger is Better

Latest Quarter

69.9%

85.9%

102.3%

80.7%

83.8%

90.0%

Forecast Revenue Budget Outturn % Variance

Smaller is Better

Latest Quarter

1.8%

0.4%

0.6%

1.7%

0.4%

0.0%

Audit recommendations outstanding beyond target date

Smaller is Better

Latest Quarter

?

9

1

26

26

0

Bigger is Better

Latest Quarter

£1,355

Mar21

£1,696

Jun21

Target
Sep21

Reporting Basis Sep20

Funds raised from asset sales (Capital receipts) (£000)

Dec20

Actual
Sep21

Good Performance High/Low

£4,218

£35

£176

Comments
Delivery of the £5.668 million of savings against a
target of £6.761 million in 2021/22 or 83.83%.
The current forecast of the year end revenue position
against the revenue budget of £483.008 million,
based on forecasts in October 2021 (Period 7) is an
overspend of £2.076 million all of which relates to non
Covid19 expenditure, as we are forecasting a
balanced position in relation to Covid19 expenditure
and income. The largest nonCovid19 variance in
Children and Families.

Comparator
Group
n/a

n/a

n/a
£176,941 achieved in Q2 (£156,691 sale of land at
Cinderford 09/07/2021 and £20,250 sale of land at
Northleach 12/08/2021).
Capital Receipts achieved to date £211,941.
Sales agreed and being progressed by Legal Services
£7,355,500.

£2,850

n/a

Delays due to expansion of schemes by Members and
associated planning applications. Planning application
for former Coln House School, Fairford was deferred
by Cotswold District Council Planning Committee
07/07/2021.

Amount of uncommitted general reserves (£000)

Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Sep20

Plan is Best

Latest Quarter

Dec20

Mar21

Jun21

Actual Sep21

Comments

£21,990

?

Comparator
Group
n/a

Human Resources

Page 84

Days lost to Sickness per FTE (excluding Schools)

GCC Turnover (staff leaving as a % of all staff)
Turnover of all adults social workers and senior practitioners
Turnover of all children's social workers and senior
practitioners
% of appraisals completed
Days lost to sickness/absence per FTE  Rolling Year

Employee Engagement Index

Dec20

Latest Quarter

Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Sep20

Smaller is Better
Smaller is Better

Rolling Year
Rolling Year

9.2%
13.0%

9.3%
10.1%

9.1%
9.9%

10.3%
14.5%

11.6%
16.2%

n/a
n/a

Smaller is Better

Rolling Year

11.2%

15.1%

18.1%

21.6%

22.1%

n/a

Bigger is Better
Smaller is Better

Latest Quarter
Rolling Year

20.3%
7.04

26.7%
6.25

32.7%
5.64

13.8%
5.92

39.4%
6.97

n/a
7.38

Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Dec16

Bigger is Better

Annual

Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Sep20

Dec20

1.43

Mar21

Dec17

1.60

Jun21

Dec18

Dec20

Mar21

1.80

n/a

Actual Sep21

Actual
Dec20

Dec19

93.4%

2.19

Comments

Comparator
Group

Smaller is Better

1.58

Jun21

Target
Sep21

Reporting Basis Sep20
1.09

Mar21

Actual
Sep21

Good Performance High/Low

94.4%

Jun21

Comments

Target
Dec20

96.3%

Actual Sep21

95.0%

Comments
We completed the staff survey in March and have
reviewed results in April and May.

Comments

Comparator
Group

Comparator
Group
n/a

Comparator
Group

There has been a reduction in P1 incidents this
quarter. Two P1 incidents have been caused by drive/
disk space issues and GCC are working with Cantium
to improve their capacity management processes and
avoid reoccurrence of similar issues in future.
4 P1 incidents in total were raised; but only 2 of these
were determined to be full outages once investigation
progressed, and 2 were downgraded to P2.
Data is taken from the GCC Monthly Service reports,
original data source ServiceNow.

Total number of ICT Priority 1 incidents raised per quarter

Smaller is Better

Latest Quarter

3

3

6

7

Jul21
13/07  Users unable to access Liquidlogic 08:51 
2 09:40 due to disk space issue resolved by Cantium
with support from Liquidlogic.
Aug21
06/08  Users unable to access internet via Purple
layer due to global issue at Forcepoint impacting

n/a

16

ICT
Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Sep20

Dec20

Mar21

Jun21

Actual Sep21

Comments

Comparator
Group

There has been a reduction in P1 incidents this
quarter. Two P1 incidents have been caused by drive/
disk space issues and GCC are working with Cantium
to improve their capacity management processes and
avoid reoccurrence of similar issues in future.
4 P1 incidents in total were raised; but only 2 of these
were determined to be full outages once investigation
progressed, and 2 were downgraded to P2.
Data is taken from the GCC Monthly Service reports,
original data source ServiceNow.

Total number of ICT Priority 1 incidents raised per quarter

Smaller is Better

Latest Quarter

3

3

6

Jul21
13/07  Users unable to access Liquidlogic 08:51 
2 09:40 due to disk space issue resolved by Cantium
with support from Liquidlogic.

7

n/a

Aug21
06/08  Users unable to access internet via Purple
layer due to global issue at Forcepoint impacting
traffic routing. Blue layer not impacted (no full
outage).
Sep21
02/09  Users unable to print from Purple layer due to
issue caused by Microsoft patching a security
vulnerability. Blue layer not impacted (no full outage).
07/09  Users unable to connect to Capita One
database 08:18  09:03 due to drive capacity issue
caused by log files, resolved by Cantium.

Page 85

SHE

Number of RIDDOR reportable incidents

Good Performance High/Low

Reporting Basis Sep20

Smaller is Better

Latest Quarter

Dec20
1

Mar21
1

Actual
Sep21

Jun21
27

2

Target
Sep21
2

Comments
5

Comparator
Group
n/a

17

Strategic Risk
Strategic Risk Register
Strategic Risk 1: Corporate Governance
Risk Owner
SR1.1

Failure in corporate governance which leads to service,
financial, legal or reputational damage or failure.

Ayliffe, Rob

Inherent
Risk
High 20

Sep20
Moderate 8

Dec20
Moderate 8

Mar21

Actual
Sep21

Jun21

Moderate 8

Moderate 8

DoT Sep
21

Comments
The Annual Governance Statement was accepted and approved by Audit &
Governance Committee in September.

Moderate
8

Strategic Risk 2: Financial
Risk Owner

Inherent
Risk

Sep20

Dec20

Mar21

SR2.4a

Reductions and changes to funding in current financial year
and any additional unplanned overspends from previous
financial year, with the potential to impact Core Services.

Blacker,
Paul

High 25 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10

SR2.4b

Reductions and changes to funding for future financial years,
potentially impacting, in particular, Core Services

Blacker,
Paul

High 25

SR2.8

The cumulative impact of service pressures, particularly the
financial impact of COVID19, increased demand in Children
Blacker,
and Adults social care and Educational High Needs, potential
Paul
grant reductions and the under delivery of planned savings will
result in major overspend positions in current financial year.

High 20

High 15

Low 5

Low 5

High 15

Moderate
10

Low 4 Moderate 12

Moderate
12

High 15

High 25 Moderate 12 Moderate 12

Actual
Sep21

Jun21

DoT Sep
21

Comments
The final Finance Settlement announced in February 2021 was in line with
expectations allowing the Council to set a balanced budget for 2021/22.and the
outturn position for 2020/21 was an underspend so the level of General Reserves
has increased.
The Finance Settlement announced in February 2021 only covered one financial
year. There remains uncertainty about funding levels beyond March 2022. The
Comprehensive Spending Review is expected in autumn.
It is anticipated that the allocation of COVID grants in 2021/22 and the carry
forwards from 2020/21 will be sufficient to cover the additional expenditure / lost
income associated with COVID this financial year.. However increased demand
for Children's social care external placements and SEND provision in Education
will place significant pressure on the budgets in 2021/22.

Strategic Risk 3: Infrastructure

Page 86

Risk Owner

Inherent
Risk

Sep20

Dec20

Mar21

Jun21

Actual
Sep21

DoT Sep
21

Comments
The Digital ICT Service has now been established and the new Senior
Management Team has been in place for six months. Reviews are being
undertaken for each element of the service and an audit plan is in place we
expect these measures to reduce the risk level during 21/22

SR3.1

Failure to ensure technology managed by ICT (including
communications abilities) remains fit for purpose.

Quayle,
Mandy

High 25

High 15

High 15

High 15

High 15

High 15

Items below are a summary of the 'Controls in Place' field held on the Strategic
Risk Register:
Director level ownership of the ICT Managed Service contract with Cantium
ICT client team staffing structure redeveloped  e.g. greater engagement
with all Directorates via new ICT Business Relationship team, underpinned by
an internal Strategy & Architecture function.
Governance in place to ensure any ICT operational risks and issues are
appropriately managed
ICT Strategy, Service Plan and strategic roadmap in place to address ageing
and legacy technological products and solutions
Comprehensive MTFS/capital expenditure activity to address a legacy of
underinvestment in technology and digital solutions
Significant project activities have been undertaken to modernise/stabilise
critical infrastructure, focused on a journey to cloud technologies via improved
WAN / LAN / telephony / WiFi services.
The new Digital and ICT operating model is governed through a robust set of
meetings including a structured Digital and ICT Senior Management Team
meeting that reviews all aspects of the service delivery.
There is an increase prevalence of Ransomware attacks within both council and
major suppliers. As an organisation we are being extra vigilant. Although this
quarter we are not changing the risk rating we are mindful this situation can
change quickly and are therefore keeping this under review.
Items below are a summary of the 'Controls in Place' field held on the Strategic
Risk Register:
ICT Managed Service contract with Cantium in place to provide technological
controls and measures against cyber attack
ICT client team staffing structure has been redeveloped to give closer
working with the Information Management Service.
Governance in place via the Information Board to ensure any technical and
nontechnical operational risks and issues are appropriately managed
Cyber & Information Management (Procurement) Policy in place
Comprehensive MTFS/capital expenditure activity to address a legacy of
underinvestment in technology and digital solutions
The annual Independent IT health check has been completed and remediating
any issues found in partnership with suppliers.
Significant change activities have been undertaken to modernise/stabilise
critical infrastructure, e.g. telephony, WiFi, videoconferencing, etc.

18

result in major overspend positions in current financial year.

will place significant pressure on the budgets in 2021/22.

Strategic Risk 3: Infrastructure
Risk Owner

Inherent
Risk

Sep20

Dec20

Mar21

Jun21

Actual
Sep21

DoT Sep
21

Comments
The Digital ICT Service has now been established and the new Senior
Management Team has been in place for six months. Reviews are being
undertaken for each element of the service and an audit plan is in place we
expect these measures to reduce the risk level during 21/22

SR3.1

Failure to ensure technology managed by ICT (including
communications abilities) remains fit for purpose.

Quayle,
Mandy

High 25

High 15

High 15

High 15

High 15

Items below are a summary of the 'Controls in Place' field held on the Strategic
Risk Register:
Director level ownership of the ICT Managed Service contract with Cantium
ICT client team staffing structure redeveloped  e.g. greater engagement
with all Directorates via new ICT Business Relationship team, underpinned by
an internal Strategy & Architecture function.
Governance in place to ensure any ICT operational risks and issues are
appropriately managed
ICT Strategy, Service Plan and strategic roadmap in place to address ageing
and legacy technological products and solutions
Comprehensive MTFS/capital expenditure activity to address a legacy of
underinvestment in technology and digital solutions
Significant project activities have been undertaken to modernise/stabilise
critical infrastructure, focused on a journey to cloud technologies via improved
WAN / LAN / telephony / WiFi services.
The new Digital and ICT operating model is governed through a robust set of
meetings including a structured Digital and ICT Senior Management Team
meeting that reviews all aspects of the service delivery.
There is an increase prevalence of Ransomware attacks within both council and
major suppliers. As an organisation we are being extra vigilant. Although this
quarter we are not changing the risk rating we are mindful this situation can
change quickly and are therefore keeping this under review.

High 15

Page 87

Items below are a summary of the 'Controls in Place' field held on the Strategic
Risk Register:
ICT Managed Service contract with Cantium in place to provide technological
controls and measures against cyber attack
ICT client team staffing structure has been redeveloped to give closer
working with the Information Management Service.
Governance in place via the Information Board to ensure any technical and
nontechnical operational risks and issues are appropriately managed
Cyber & Information Management (Procurement) Policy in place
Comprehensive MTFS/capital expenditure activity to address a legacy of
underinvestment in technology and digital solutions
The annual Independent IT health check has been completed and remediating
any issues found in partnership with suppliers.
Significant change activities have been undertaken to modernise/stabilise
critical infrastructure, e.g. telephony, WiFi, videoconferencing, etc.
Regular communications are circulated and training provided to ensure that
staff are fully aware of their responsibilities to help in the fight against cyber
crime.
The Digital Board is now established to control and manage data and
information across the council
Internal audit has a programme of cyber audits for 2021 / 22
The Digital ICT Service has now been established and the new Senior
Management Team has been in place for six months. Reviews are being
undertaken for each element of the service and an audit plan is in place we
expect these measures to reduce the risk level during 21/22

SR3.2

Failure to protect the council's key information and data from
Cyber Attack.

Quayle,
Mandy

High 25

High 15

High 15

High 15

High 15

High 15

Items below are a summary of the 'Controls in Place' field held on the Strategic
Risk Register:
Director level ownership of the ICT Managed Service contract with Cantium
ICT client team staffing structure redeveloped  e.g. greater engagement
with all Directorates via new ICT Business Relationship team, underpinned by
an internal Strategy & Architecture function.
Governance in place to ensure any ICT operational risks and issues are
appropriately managed
ICT Strategy, Service Plan and strategic roadmap in place to address ageing
and legacy technological products and solutions
Comprehensive MTFS/capital expenditure activity to address a legacy of
underinvestment in technology and digital solutions
Significant project activities have been undertaken to modernise/stabilise
critical infrastructure, focused on a journey to cloud technologies via improved
WAN / LAN / telephony / WiFi services.
The new Digital and ICT operating model is governed through a robust set of
meetings including a structured Digital and ICT Senior Management Team
meeting that reviews all aspects of the service delivery.

Strategic Risk 5: Organisational Change Programmes
Risk Owner

Inherent
Risk

Sep20

Dec20

Mar21

Jun21

Actual
Sep21

DoT Sep
21

Comments
Risk of provider failure is currently increased due to staffing recruitment and
retention pressures. Staffing risks have increased due to a number of factors that

19

meeting that reviews all aspects of the service delivery.

Strategic Risk 5: Organisational Change Programmes
Risk Owner

SR5.3

Provider failures result in the council being unable to achieve
its strategic objectives

Scott, Sarah

Inherent
Risk

Sep20

High 25

Dec20

High 15

High 20

Mar21

High 20

Jun21

High 20

Actual
Sep21

DoT Sep
21

Comments
Risk of provider failure is currently increased due to staffing recruitment and
retention pressures. Staffing risks have increased due to a number of factors that
have been exacerbated by the impact of the CV19 pandemic and the additional
actions required to manage the spread of this, including but not limited to the
potential of staff having to undertake a mandatory vaccination

High 20

Strategic Risk 6: Collaborative Working
Risk Owner

SR6.1

Failure to maintain effective relationships with key partners
and organisations and shared funding arrangements,
impacting on our ability to meet statutory and local
requirements.

Inherent
Risk

Sep20

Dec20

Mar21

Jun21

Actual
Sep21

DoT Sep
21

Comments

The Coronavirus pandemic has taken priority over the last 18 months and, with
formal Covid restrictions now being lifted, a move towards agile working is
taking place. We are still seeing highly effective and very positive working
relationships with partners and organisations to meet statutory and local
requirements. The LRF, other emergency management functions and business
continuity arrangements ensure the county continues to meet its statutory and
local requirements effectively.
Bungard,
Pete

High 20

Moderate 8

Moderate 8

Moderate 8

Moderate 8

Moderate
8

Leadership Gloucestershire meetings continue, albeit remotely for the time being,
and continue to provide the Covid 19 updating function that the County and
District Leader's meeting was set up to establish at the beginning of the
pandemic. Leader's Stocktake meetings; regular MP briefings with Health; Covid
19 Member Engagement Board and Public Health Assurance Boards all continue.
Members are returning to facetoface meetings for some statutory meetings,
where space allows, and, moving forward, staff will move towards hybrid working
arrangements in keeping with the needs of the business.

Strategic Risk 7: Safeguarding Children, Young People & Adults
Risk Owner

Inherent
Risk

Sep20

Dec20

Mar21

Jun21

Actual
Sep21

DoT Sep
21

Comments

Page 88

The workload of the safeguarding team remains high. Work has been undertaken
to reduce the backlog of concerns awaiting a decision. A new member of staff
joined the team this week and this additional resource will assist in managing the
workload.
SR7.1

Failure to protect vulnerable adults in Gloucestershire from
abuse neglect in situations that potentially could have been
predicted and prevented.

Scott, Sarah

High 20 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10

Moderate
10
The Independent Chair of the Safeguarding Adults Board and the Head of
Safeguarding Adults are taking part in the consultation regarding support to
people who use drugs and alcohol, with the aim of looking for creative ways in
which to work more effectively with this group.

SR7.2

Ineffective social care practice, management oversight and
review processes resulting in drift and delay for children and
young people in situations of harm.

Spencer,
Chris

Moderate 8

Moderate
8

SR7.4

Failure to close the gaps in educational outcomes for
vulnerable learners and their peers resulting in adverse
Harrison,
impacts for children and families, increased cost/pressures on Kirsten
specialist provision and damage to reputation.

High 20 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12

Moderate
12

SR7.5

Insufficient workforce capacity and/or instability adversely
impacting on pace and sustainability of improvement and
Spencer,
contributing to discontinuity in social engagement with children Chris
and families

High 16

Moderate
12

High 25

Moderate 8

Moderate 8

Moderate 8

Moderate 8

Moderate 8

Moderate 8

Moderate 8

Our Accelerated Improvement Plan, QA and Performance Management
Framework continue to provide the key drivers for improvement activity. Our
Team Improvement Plan and Essentials 2.0 and 3.0 programmes enable
practitioners to hone their skills in support of improving outcomes for children
and families. Recent operating conditions have been challenging due to
increased demand and churn in our work force. Senior leaders have taken
action to address these including an Innovate Team to progress permanence and
a case file screening programme to address and recording or practice
deficiencies.
The impact of Covid has exacerbated preexisting inequalities. Whilst national
benchmarking assessments have been disrupted  2020, 2021  making
comparative data problematical, it is clear the gap for vulnerable young people is
widening and vulnerable learners have been disproportionately affected. The
further development of the Education Reference Group and closer working
established with all settings across the Covid period will be key in understanding
and planning to address those gaps in partnership with the transformational
project works in train focused on High Needs provision.
Our Workforce Development Strategy continues to draw upon a wide range of
sources in growing our own practitioners  including Frontline, increased ASYE,
Students, Step Up, Apprenticeships and Overseas Social Workers. We keep our
employment offer under review and have recently revised our Agency rate to
ensure it remains competitive. The Social Work Academy provides a rich
curriculum to support professional development. An extensive range of employee
support is also in place for practitioners. More recently we have experienced
greater churn in our workforce and an increase in vacancies due to difficulties in
recruitment, particularly in our safeguarding and assessment teams. The
situation is further compounded by increased demand leading to higher
caseloads. Senior leaders are working with HR colleagues to respond and ensure

20

Strategic Risk 7: Safeguarding Children, Young People & Adults
Risk Owner

Inherent
Risk

Sep20

Dec20

Mar21

Actual
Sep21

Jun21

DoT Sep
21

Comments
The workload of the safeguarding team remains high. Work has been undertaken
to reduce the backlog of concerns awaiting a decision. A new member of staff
joined the team this week and this additional resource will assist in managing the
workload.

SR7.1

Failure to protect vulnerable adults in Gloucestershire from
abuse neglect in situations that potentially could have been
predicted and prevented.

Scott, Sarah

High 20 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10

Moderate
10
The Independent Chair of the Safeguarding Adults Board and the Head of
Safeguarding Adults are taking part in the consultation regarding support to
people who use drugs and alcohol, with the aim of looking for creative ways in
which to work more effectively with this group.

SR7.2

Ineffective social care practice, management oversight and
review processes resulting in drift and delay for children and
young people in situations of harm.

Spencer,
Chris

Page 89

Moderate 8

Moderate
8

SR7.4

Failure to close the gaps in educational outcomes for
vulnerable learners and their peers resulting in adverse
Harrison,
impacts for children and families, increased cost/pressures on Kirsten
specialist provision and damage to reputation.

High 20 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12

Moderate
12

SR7.5

Insufficient workforce capacity and/or instability adversely
impacting on pace and sustainability of improvement and
Spencer,
contributing to discontinuity in social engagement with children Chris
and families

High 16

Moderate 8

Moderate 8

Moderate
12

SR7.6

Unable to support all those who can, to live independently at
home, because demand for home care services outstrips
available capacity. Resulting in the reliance on temporary
respite/alternative bed based care in lieu of home care

Scott, Sarah

High 20 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12

High 16

High 20

SR7.7

Failure to develop sufficient placement capacity to meet the
needs of children looked after

Spencer,
Chris

High 16 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12

Moderate
12

SR7.8

Risk of legal action being taken against the Local Authority due
to failure to complete a Deprivation of Liberty assessment
within the stated time lines. Since a significant and sudden
change in the law due to a Supreme Court Judgement in
Scott, Sarah
March 2014 there is an excessively high demand for best
interest assessments to be carried out for Deprivation of
Liberty (DoLS) authorisations.

High 25

High 20

Moderate 8

Moderate 8

Moderate 9

Moderate 8

Moderate 8

Moderate 9

Moderate 8

Moderate 9

Our Accelerated Improvement Plan, QA and Performance Management
Framework continue to provide the key drivers for improvement activity. Our
Team Improvement Plan and Essentials 2.0 and 3.0 programmes enable
practitioners to hone their skills in support of improving outcomes for children
and families. Recent operating conditions have been challenging due to
increased demand and churn in our work force. Senior leaders have taken
action to address these including an Innovate Team to progress permanence and
a case file screening programme to address and recording or practice
deficiencies.
The impact of Covid has exacerbated preexisting inequalities. Whilst national
benchmarking assessments have been disrupted  2020, 2021  making
comparative data problematical, it is clear the gap for vulnerable young people is
widening and vulnerable learners have been disproportionately affected. The
further development of the Education Reference Group and closer working
established with all settings across the Covid period will be key in understanding
and planning to address those gaps in partnership with the transformational
project works in train focused on High Needs provision.
Our Workforce Development Strategy continues to draw upon a wide range of
sources in growing our own practitioners  including Frontline, increased ASYE,
Students, Step Up, Apprenticeships and Overseas Social Workers. We keep our
employment offer under review and have recently revised our Agency rate to
ensure it remains competitive. The Social Work Academy provides a rich
curriculum to support professional development. An extensive range of employee
support is also in place for practitioners. More recently we have experienced
greater churn in our workforce and an increase in vacancies due to difficulties in
recruitment, particularly in our safeguarding and assessment teams. The
situation is further compounded by increased demand leading to higher
caseloads. Senior leaders are working with HR colleagues to respond and ensure
improvement activity is not affected.
We are experiencing a significant number of providers handing back packages of
care due to staffing shortages. Agencies are reporting additional pressures in
recruiting and retention of staff. A number of agencies are reporting that carers
are leaving to return to their country of origin and to take up alternative careers
in areas such as hospitality and retail.
Our Sufficiency Strategy continues to provide the focal point for our work to
ensure we have the right placements for our children and young people. Trevone
House is now operational and providing for some of our most complex young
people with plans well advanced to extend the model to other sites. Proposals
for a parent and child assessment provision are also well advanced. The
difficulties in the provider market, due to Covid and other factors, continue and
this is making it very challenging to place some children and young people. Our
numbers of children in care are increasing as is the proportion placed out of
county. Placement stability, both short and longterm, has improved but more is
needed to meet our ambitions. Utilisation of inhouse foster capacity has also
improved.
The DoLS service continues to prioritise all applications in line with ADASS
guidance. This approach is reviewed regularly and discussed at DoLS team
meetings. The Duty BIA role has been reduced from a full day, to half a day, to
allow more time for the completion of assessments.

Moderate
Moderate 9
9

Strategic Risk 8: Workforce Planning & Employee Relations
Risk Owner

SR8.1

Difficulties in recruiting and retaining experience workers in
hard to fill roles leading to vacancies and/or high numbers of
agency staff in some areas. This is particularly prevalent for
social workers but is also increasingly a factor for other
professional roles.

Quayle,
Mandy

Inherent
Risk

Sep20

Dec20

Mar21

Jun21

High 16 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12

Actual
Sep21

High 16

DoT Sep
21

Comments
The County Council continues to experience difficulty in recruiting and retaining
staff in professionally qualified staff groups where there are national and long
lasting labour shortages, such as children's social workers and solicitors. We have
put in place a range of measures to mitigate this risk such as additional market 21
supplement payments, overseas recruitment and trainee programmes. Despite
these measures the problems will remain in the short to medium term given that

Liberty (DoLS) authorisations.

Strategic Risk 8: Workforce Planning & Employee Relations
Risk Owner

SR8.1

Difficulties in recruiting and retaining experience workers in
hard to fill roles leading to vacancies and/or high numbers of
agency staff in some areas. This is particularly prevalent for
social workers but is also increasingly a factor for other
professional roles.

Quayle,
Mandy

Inherent
Risk

Sep20

Dec20

Mar21

Jun21

High 16 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12

Actual
Sep21

DoT Sep
21

Comments
The County Council continues to experience difficulty in recruiting and retaining
staff in professionally qualified staff groups where there are national and long
lasting labour shortages, such as children's social workers and solicitors. We have
put in place a range of measures to mitigate this risk such as additional market
supplement payments, overseas recruitment and trainee programmes. Despite
these measures the problems will remain in the short to medium term given that
we are competing with other councils for the same pool of qualified staff groups.

High 16

Strategic Risk 10: Emergency Response & Business Continuity Threats
Risk Owner

SR10.1

Failure of the Council or a key partner to effectively respond
to a major incident such as flooding that results in community
disruption and failure to return to normal, within required
timescales.

Preece,
Mark

Inherent
Risk
High 20

Sep20

Dec20

Mar21

Jun21

High 15 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12

Actual
Sep21

DoT Sep
21

Comments
Covid is well managed and resource is in place. Civil protection team is
adequately staffed 365 days a year. Executive directorate response is in place
and LRF training is ongoing and attended by all directorates.

Moderate
9

Civil Protection Team have requested Business impact analyses (BIAs) be
conducted before BCPs are developed / updated. Those responsible for
completing the BIAs are taking an unexpected length of time to return a finalised
BIA (the average elapsed time from a facilitated BIA session to delivery by the
plan owner of a signed off BIA is six weeks), with extra / unplanned time being
spent by the lead officer for BCM chasing up plan owners for their BIAs in that
intervening period. Work continues with each Directorate to support and facilitate
the completion of BIAs but there is concern this is taking to long.
_________________________________________
UPDATE FROM THE LEAD OFFICER FOR BCM:

Page 90

The latest management information (MI) dated 22/10/2021 indicates that some
89% of services across GCC, incl. GFRS, have a business continuity plan (BCP)
in place – a small improvement over the quarter. However, it remains the case
that the majority of plans – 77% overall – require review (i.e. they have not
been reevaluated / updated in the last six months and so do not at present fully
comply with the agreed Business Continuity Policy). There has been a further
improvement – from 11% down to 9% – in services not able to evidence a BCP
(which are therefore considered as not having a BCP in place). The preceding
figures support the risk rating for this quarter.

SR10.4

Due to insufficient business continuity management
arrangements failure of the Council or a key partner to
effectively deliver their statutory services, resulting in
community disruption and failure of corporate objectives.

Preece,
Mark

High 16 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12

Business impact analyses (BIAs) need to be conducted before BCPs are
developed / updated and BIA sessions continue to be rolled out to plan owners.
As reported in the previous quarter, it continues to be the case that those
responsible for completing the BIAs are taking an unexpected length of time to
return a finalised BIA (six weeks elapsed time against the expected two week
timescale). The development of BCPs in the required format is also taking longer
than expected with some plan owners taking a further six weeks (rather than the
expected four week timescale) to complete the work. The corporate BCM
Assurance Board is monitoring progress and has approved a paper to CLT (due
to be presented 09/11/2021) outlining that the delivery of the full BCM project is
likely to take an extra threesix months if work continues at the current pace.
CLT will be asked to either ensure greater priority is given to the BCM work or
accept that, given other demands across the council, completion of the work will
be delayed. The project overrun will not foreseeably worsen risk impact.

Moderate
12

Notwithstanding the above, as the project progresses, more BIAs and BCPs will
be updated across the organisation and processes will be implemented to ensure
that plans are rehearsed and tested, resulting in greater confidence in the
robustness of each service's BCM arrangements and a consequent overall
reduction in risk impact. However, business continuity management is not a
"preventative" discipline and does not aim to reduce the likelihood of
disruption. It should also be noted that GCC Corporate Leadership Team has
agreed, per the council's Business Continuity Policy, that it is neither desirable
nor practicable to entirely eliminate low frequency but high impact disruption
risks at source (the appropriate response to such risks being for GCC to plan to
react effectively should the risks be realised – preparing to minimise the impact
of the incident and to promptly recover the affected activities, i.e. business
continuity planning).

SR10.6

Insufficient workforce capacity and/or instability adversely
impacting on pace and sustainability of improvement and
Preece,
contributing to increased risk to firefighter safety or capability Mark
to deliver emergency services to the community

High 20

Moderate 12

Moderate 8

Moderate 8

There has been a recruitment and selection process carried out to backfill
substantive posts. In year and MTFS bids are progressing to cover additional
resources as well as funding for development and training. Even with these
measures in place it is still recognised that there are many work pressures on
staff and work is underway to alleviate some of these pressures.

Moderate
12

Strategic Risk 11: Information Governance
Risk Owner

Inherent
Risk

Sep20

Dec20

Mar21

Jun21

Actual
Sep21

DoT Sep
21

22
Comments

staff and work is underway to alleviate some of these pressures.

Strategic Risk 11: Information Governance
Risk Owner

SR11.1

Failure to comply with data protection and to protect the
confidentiality, integrity and availability of information.

Ayliffe, Rob

Inherent
Risk

Sep20

Dec20

Mar21

Actual
Sep21

Jun21

DoT Sep
21

Comments
Cyber risk remains an area of focus for the Council. Actions have been
strengthened during the quarter to ensure that end user devices are regularly
patched and updated. Work is underway to identify and decommission redundant
devices which will further mitigate this risk.

Moderate
High 20 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12
12

Strategic Risk 12: Climate Change
Risk Owner

SR12.1

Failure to deliver the county council’s climate change strategy,
impacting our ability to deliver our organisation, partnership
and community activities, and to mitigate the impacts of a
Chick, Colin
changing climate on Gloucestershire’s natural environment,
communities, business and visitors.

Inherent
Risk

Sep20

Dec20

High 25 Moderate 10 Moderate 10

Mar21

Actual
Sep21

Jun21

High 15

High 15

DoT Sep
21

Comments
In 2019 the council declared a Climate Emergency and Cabinet approved a
Climate Change Strategy with a five year rolling action plan. This was reviewed
by Cabinet in December 2020 and officers are progressing the delivery of
individual actions. This is on the Environment Scrutiny Committee work plan and
the next annual review will be considered by Cabinet in December 2021.
The risk likelihood has reduced as a result of the following staff appointments:
Strategic Climate Change Coordinator (1 FTE), working across Gloucestershire
public sector organisations under Leadership Gloucestershire, hosted by
Gloucester City Council
County Council  Climate Change & Air Quality Officer (1 FTE), Sustainability &
Engagement Officers (1.5 FTE). (Recruitment of a Tree Officer is underway)

Moderate
10

Strategic Risk 13: Uncertainties arising from the UK leaving the EU
Risk Owner

SR13.1

Uncertainties arising from the UK leaving the EU with the
possible impact on funding and policy change affecting
Gloucestershire County Council and Local Government in
general

Preece,
Mark

Inherent
Risk

High 15

Sep20

Dec20

Mar21

High 15 Moderate 10

Actual
Sep21

Jun21

Low 6

Low 6

DoT Sep
21

Comments
Since leaving the EU there has been a slowly improving picture. Although there
is recognition that over recent months the EU exit has contributed to gaps in
recruitment in some business areas; recent example being drivers for fuel
delivery and public reaction to perceived shortages within supermarkets.

Moderate
9

Page 91

Strategic Risk 14: Community Infrastructure Levy
Risk Owner

SR14.1

Emergence of Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

Chick, Colin

Inherent
Risk

High 16

Sep20

High 16

Dec20

High 16

Mar21

High 16

Jun21

High 16

Actual
Sep21

High 16

DoT Sep
21

Comments
5 of the 6 District Councils continue to implement CIL. GCC officers continue to
actively engage with the 5 District Councils to attempt to ensure that essential
strategic infrastructure is secured as part of future developments / planning
permissions. There is an ongoing review of the JCS CIL, which is very much
welcomed. GCC has contributed £85K towards this review.

23

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
Corporate Performance Report
Quarter 2 2021/22
Corporate Resources
Corporate Resources
Percentage of Corporate Performance Indicators On/Ahead, Within Tolerance or
Behind Target

27% (3)

Q2 2021/22

73% (8)

42% (5)

Q1 2021/22
Q4 2020/21

58% (6)

36% (5)

64% (9)

Q3 2020/21

43% (6)

7% (1)

50% (7)

Q2 2020/21

42% (5)

8% (1)

50% (7)

0%

10%

20%

On or Ahead of Target

30%

40%

50%

60%

Within Tolerance (0 - 5% Worse than Target)

70%

80%

90%

100%

≥ 5% Worse than Target

1.

HR: Overall sickness levels across GCC have increased, from 1.60 days lost per FtE to 2.19
days. This does not align with historic seasonal trends where lower rates of sickness have
been recorded during the summer months. Covid-19 continued to impact absence, accounting
for 9% of days lost to sickness in Quarter 2, up from 4% last quarter. Performance is worse
than target (1.80). Over a 12-month period, performance continues to be better than the
comparator average (6.97 compared with 7.38 days lost per FtE).

2.

Increases are also evident within long term sickness and stress, with the exception of sickness
levels within Corporate Resources. Days lost to stress per FtE across the organisation remain
low (0.79) but have increased since last quarter (0.53). 1.36 days per FTE were lost due to
long-term sickness in Quarter 2 up from 1.06 days.

3.

The Personal Development Review (PDR) process is intended to provide a clear link between
the work of individuals to their business plans and the Council Strategy. It also supports the
review of learning and development needed to ensure that GCC’s workforce has the current
skills and knowledge needed to deliver objectives. The completion of PDRs across GCC
remains low (39.4%). Note: that following a return to business as usual messaging around the
completion of PDRs this year, a target for 2021/22 is yet to be set and will be agreed as part of
Quarter 2 performance discussion.
Children’s Services had the lowest level of PDR completion (19.3%), followed by Community
Safety (25.6%). Based on internal reporting for Community Safety, PDR completion is higher at
65%. Work will be undertaken to improve recording, both across internal and corporate
systems and where teams are verbally reporting completion that is not recorded at all.
More than half of workers in EE&I and Corporate Resources had received a PDR (64.8% and
55.6% respectively). While overall completion across Adult Social Care and PWC was at
45.8%, a significant proportion of this performance was attributable to PWC where 80% of staff
had had a PDR. Sickness is also higher in Adult Social Care than in other areas.
1

Page 93

4.

Staff turnover increased for the second quarter, from 9.1% between January-March 2021 to
11.6% in Quarter 2. The Office of National Statistics reported that the number of job vacancies
in the UK in Quarter 2 was at a record high with all industry sectors carrying vacancy levels
equal to or greater than pre-pandemic levels. With the broader adoption of agile working also
extending the range of opportunities available to workers, increased turnover may be expected.
However, the impact of this is that we continue to experience difficulty in recruiting and
retaining staff in professionally qualified staff groups where there are national and long-lasting
labour shortages, such as children's Social Workers and Solicitors. We have put in place a
range of measures such as additional market supplement payments, overseas recruitment and
trainee programmes in response to the challenges presented by national market conditions.
Despite these measures the problems will remain in the short to medium term, given that we
are competing with other councils and the private sector for the same pool of qualified staff
groups. Directorates have also experienced difficulties recruiting non-professional roles due to
the competitive market. As a result, the risk has increased from Moderate (12) to High (16)
relating to difficulties in recruiting and retaining experienced workers in hard to fill roles leading
to vacancies and/or high numbers of agency staff in some areas. This is particularly prevalent
for social workers but is also increasingly a factor for other professional roles. Adult Services
and PWC had the highest level of turnover (12.7% overall) in Quarter 2; within PWC turnover
was at 27.3%.

5.

Turnover of Adult Services Social Workers increased for the second quarter (16.2% up from
9.9% in March 2021). While the rate of turnover had slowed, Children’s Services saw an
increase in the turnover of Social Workers for the fourth quarter from 11.2% at the same time
last year to 22.1%. Note: that this does not include turnover of agency staff.

6.

ICT: Significant change activities have been undertaken to modernise critical ICT
infrastructure, supporting its stabilisation. The improvement work undertaken is beginning to
translate into improved performance with Priority 1 (P1) incidents reducing from seven last
quarter to two in Quarter 2 (Note: this is an organisation-wide issue, an issue causing an
outage or one preventing a large volume of GCC staff from working). This is the lowest level of
incidents recorded since 2018/19. As part of the agreed Transformation Programme both the
network infrastructure and remote access solution are due to be refreshed/replaced. The ICT
roadmap is also focused on a journey towards cloud technologies. However, in the interim, the
risk relating to failure to ensure technology managed by ICT (including communications
abilities) remains fit for purpose remains High (15).
The risk rating relating to failure to protect the council's key information and data from Cyber
Attack remains unchanged at High (15) as this situation can change quickly. As an
organisation we are being vigilant. Technological controls and measures against cyber-attack
are in place, such as ensuring devices are fully patched and reviewing backup services.
Regular communications are circulated and training provided to ensure that staff are fully
aware of their responsibilities to help in the fight against cyber-crime. Internal audit also has a
programme of cyber audits planned for 2021/22.

7.

AMPS: Capital receipts from the sale of two land assets were collected in Quarter 2 at a value
of £176,941, bringing the total Capital Receipts for 2021/22 to date to £211,941. While sales
totalling £7,355,500 have been agreed and are being progressed by Legal Services, the level
of funds received is currently significantly below the phased target for receipts (£2.85m).
Income derived from Capital Receipts has an annual target of £28.5m, of which £14m is likely
to be achieved in 2022/23.

8.

Strategic Finance: The final Finance Settlement announced in February 2021 was in line with
expectations allowing the Council to set a balanced budget for 2021/22 and the outturn
2

Page 94

position for 2020/21 was an underspend so the level of General Reserves has increased.
Reductions and changes to funding in current financial year and any additional unplanned
overspends from previous financial year, with the potential to impact Core Services therefore
remains a Low risk scored 5.
It is anticipated that the allocation of COVID grants in 2021/22 and the carry forwards from
2020/21 will be sufficient to cover the additional expenditure/lost income associated with
Covid-19 this financial year. However increased demand for Children's Social Care external
placements and SEND provision in Education will place significant pressure on the budgets in
2021/22. The risk that the cumulative impact of service pressures, particularly the financial
impact of COVID-19, increased demand in Children and Adults Social Care and Educational
High Needs, potential grant reductions and the under delivery of planned savings will result in
major over-spend positions in current financial year therefore remains Moderate (12).
9.

There remains considerable uncertainty about funding levels beyond March 2022, however,
the recent announcement that National Insurance will increase by 1.25% from April 2022 to
fund social care and health is an indication that the government recognises the additional
funding requirements of social care. Therefore, the risk level relating to reductions and
changes to funding for future financial years potential to impact Core Services has been
reduced from High (15) to Moderate (10). The Comprehensive Spending Review is expected
in Autumn 2021.

10. SHE: The number of RIDDOR incidents (reporting of injuries, disease and dangerous
occurrences) remained low and better than target, with two incidents in Quarter 2. However,
one incident related to the death of a resident in a care home, which is currently under
investigation.
11. Governance: Four decisions were upheld by the Local Government and Social Care
Ombudsman (LGSCO) in Quarter 2; this is worse than target. The 2020/21 LGSCO Annual
Review found Gloucestershire County Council fully compliant with all recommendations and
reported that GCC had fewer complaints upheld (55%) than the comparator average (77%).
12. Information Management: While the number of Subject Access Requests (SARs) received is
reducing, requests remain almost 30% higher than at the same time last year (104 received
compared to 81 in Quarter 2 2020/21). There is also a backlog of requests which has also
increased, due to the complexity of cases. Half of SARs were released within the required time
period during the quarter (51%). Performance has followed a declining trend, down from 68%
in Quarter 4 2020/21, and is significantly worse than target (90%). The decrease in
compliance is considered to be a result of a revised extensions process, ongoing capacity
issues relating to Childrens Services and vacancies within the Information Management
Services team. Performance levels continue to be monitored by the Information Board. The
complexity and scale of SARs has been highlighted nationally and the ICO is considering
penalties to reduce demand.
13. There were 230 information security incidents in Quarter 2, all of which were classified as low
or moderate. No incidents were reported to the Information Commissioners Office (ICO).
Investment in appropriate measures and ongoing information security training has been
beneficial as the majority of staff are aware of their responsibility to safeguard data.
The Annual Governance Statement has recently been accepted and approved by the Audit
and Governance Committee. The risk relating to failure in corporate governance which leads
to service, financial, legal or reputational damage or failure remains rated as Moderate (8).
3

Page 95

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10
Financial Monitoring Report 2021/22
Purpose of Report: To provide an update on the County Council's Revenue & Capital
outturn expenditure for 2021/22.
Officer:

Paul Blacker, Director of Finance (01452) 3258999
Paul.blacker@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Revenue Expenditure 2021/22
A. Revenue Forecast Outturn Position 2021/22
1. The current forecast of the year end revenue position against the revenue budget of
£483.008 million, based on forecasts in September 2021 (Period 6) is an overspend
of £4.027 million after utilising grants for Covid-19 expenditure.
2. The largest non-Covid-19 variance is the £7.973 million forecast overspend in
Children and Families – this overspend is partially offset by the £4.193 million
underspend in Technical & Countywide.
3. The Council’s forecast cost in regard to the Covid-19 pandemic (excluding
expenditure funded from specific grants) is estimated to be £22.472 million in
2021/22 which is funded by £11.526 million 2021/22 Covid-19 Emergency Grant
and carry forward from 2020/21 of £10.946 million emergency grant. A balanced
position is therefore forecast for Covid-19 related activity.
4. In addition to the £22.472 million of general Covid-19 grant funding detailed above,
the Council has also received specific Covid-19 related grant funding. The specific
grant allocations for 2021/22 total £15.134 million with an additional £17.197 million
carried forward from 2020/21. Details are in the table below;-:

Page 97

Carry
Brought
forward Received forward
for 22/23 for 21/22
21/22
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m

Covid Grant analysis
Other Covid -19 related grant

£m
£m

Infection Control Grant

4.334

4.334

Department for health and Social Care-Rapid Testing

3.031

3.031

Test & Trace

0.926

Covid-19 Bus Service Support Grant

0.180

H2ST DFE grant

0.576

DHSC -Contain Outbreak Management fund
Department for Work & Pensions - Covid Winter Grant
Scheme
Department for Work & Pensions - Covid Local Support
Grant
MHCLG Clinically Extremely Vulnerable (CEV) people
Tranches
.
Ministry of 1-4
Housing,
Communities & Local Government
(MHCLG)Clinically Extremely Vulnerable (CEV) people.
Tranche 4 for March 21 expected May 28 2021

10.523

-0.500

1.426
0.180

-5.789

0.237

0.339

2.974

13.337

0.524

0.524

1.419

1.419

1.435

0.205

0.000

0.000

Community Testing

0.418

0.009

0.409

Holiday & Activities Fund 20/21

1.547

1.391

0.156

DWP Local Support grant

0.355

0.355

Practical support payment 1-5

0.629

0.508

0.121

14.988

17.197

Other Covid -19 related grant

25.896

-6.289

1.230

5. The following additional grant allocations have been confirmed since the previous
Cabinet Report
 Department for Health & Social Care Community Testing £9k
 Department for Education Home to School Transport grant £151k
 Department for Health & Social Care Practical Support payments £654k
6. The assumption in this report is that relevant expenditure will be limited to the value
of these specific grants – any underspend will either need to be returned or carried
forward to be spent in accordance with the grant conditions in future years.
7. An analysis of the current forecast position is provided in the table and narrative
below.

Page 98

Directorate Breakdown for Cabinet Report - Position September Forecasts 2021 (P6)
Variance

Service Area

Revised
2021/22
Budget

£000

Adults

Forecast
Outturn
Position

Forecast
Outturn
Variance

%

£000

£000

%

Covid-19
Forecast

Forecast
excluding
Covid-19

£000

£000

156,326

159,657

3,331

2.13%

3,331

0

35,576

35,688

112

0.31%

209

-97

126,557

143,716

17,159

13.56%

9,186

7,973

Economy, Environment & Infrastructure

75,888

79,621

3,733

4.92%

3,733

0

Community Safety

19,966

20,056

90

0.45%

85

5

Corporate Resources

35,533

41,772

6,239

17.56%

5,900

339

449,846

480,510

30,664

6.82%

22,444

8,220

33,162

28,997

-4,165

-12.56%

28

-4,193

483,008

509,507

26,499

5.49%

22,472

4,027

22,472

0

-22,472

505,480

509,507

4,027

Prevention & Wellbeing

Children & Families

Total for Services

Technical & Countywide

Total
Additional Funding Covid-19
including carry forward to be
allocated
Revised Total

Page 99

-22,472
0.83%

0

4,027

Adult Social Care
8. Adult Social Care is reporting an underlying overspend of £3.331 million which
includes £3.331 million for the COVID-19 costs. Excluding the COVID-19 costs
ASC are reporting a small overspend of £0.254 million, which can be covered by the
Vulnerable Adults Reserve. Therefore Adult Social Care is forecasting a balanced
position excluding Covid-19 spend.
9. Adult Social Care reserves currently stand at £8.457million. The reserves continue
to be held as Vulnerable Adults Reserve at £5.430 million, with £3.027 million carry
forwards from 2020/21 anticipated to be used in 2021/22, primarily due to delays
caused by COVID-19.
10. There continues to be a number of significant risks that are ongoing which mainly
relate to, COVID-19, S117 backdated payments, responding to winter pressures, as
well as the Adult Single Programme (ASP)
11. The forecast cost of the COVID-19 response for 2021/22 within Adults is made up of:
 £1.431 million of support to care providers
 £0.069 million additional workforce spend
 £0.027 million on PPE
 £0.091 million additional demand
 £0.104 million miscellaneous spend across a range of budgets
 £1.174 million ASP savings at risk
 £0.435 million Historical saving delayed by COVID 19
£3.331 million funded by General COVID-19 Grant


£7.365 million of COVID-19 Specific Grant – Infection Control Fund and
Rapid Testing Grant, 1 & 2

12. Learning Disabilities External Care is projecting a £1.6 million underspend. The £1.6
million relates to £642k of underlying underspends and a further £958k of MTFS
funding which is not expected to be used during 2021/22 because of delays relating
to COVID-19, this funding will be needed next financial year..
13. Older People (OP) and Physical Disabilities (PD) is reporting an £3.248 million
overspend. The overspend is split across individual service budgets with OP
showing as £1.823 million and PD £1.425 million. The current overspend relates
mainly to the brought forward underlying financial position, voids relating to homes
run by a major provider, increased cover for bad debts and additional winter
pressures.
14. The Mental Health position of a £1.707 million overspend as calculated by the
Gloucestershire Health and Care NHST Finance Team. A long term plan is being

Page 100

developed with Gloucestershire Health and Care NHS Trust to address the
underlying overspend.
15. Other Services comprise of all staffing budgets for Adult Social Care, as well as a
number of specific commissioned contracts. The position for these services nets to
a £1.589 million underspend, including significant variances of:


£870k overspend in Reablement in respect of yet to be delivered ASP
2021/22 savings.



£1.919 million of significant underspends: £666k Care Act due to
delayed projects/recruitment; £775k OP/PD Integrated Social Care
Management (ISCM) due largely to vacancies; and £478k LD
Assessment, Support Planning & Management mainly due to vacancies.

Prevention and Wellbeing
16. Services within this area include Public Health, Supporting People and a number of
smaller budgets covering the prevention hub team and grants. In total Prevention
Services are £112k over-spent but this includes £209k of Covid-19 expenditure.
17. In total Covid-19 grants either carried forward or allocated in year to the Council
total £19.085 million. The funding will be targeted at continuing the containment and
management of the outbreak through testing and tracing, supporting vulnerable
groups and communities.
18. The underlying non-Covid-19 position for Prevention and Well Being is a £746k
under-spend. Public Health services are funded by a ring-fenced grant, which if
unspent is required to be carried forward in a specific reserve. The Public Health
(PH) position, excluding Covid-19 expenditure, is forecast to be £649k under-spent
and this will be transferred to the PH reserve at year end. Therefore the forecast
non-Covid-19 underspend net of the transfer to the PH Reserve is £97k relating to
prevention hub activities.
19. Initial estimates of supplier relief for supporting people providers against the general
grant are £200k; the actual position will be clarified in the Autumn
20. The in-year forecast for Public Health is an under-spend of £649k due to lower takeup for health checks as fewer people are currently accessing the service and the
cost of staff involved with the COVID response being charged to grants instead of
the Public Health grant.

Page 101

Children & Families
21. The current forecast for the year end revenue position as at September 2021 for
non-DSG funded services is an over-spend of £17.159 million (13.56% of budget).
Included within these figures is the forecast additional cost of the impact of Covid-19
on budgets which totals £9.186 million giving an underlying over-spend of £7.973
million. The significant over-spend continues to be against the external placements
budget due to increasing numbers of children in care partly linked to the pandemic
but also the number and cost of placements. Home to school transport and social
care staffing costs are also over-spending.
22. Additional forecast expenditure for the impact of Covid-19 covers three key areas
which are external placement costs including the additional cost of accommodation
for care leavers, cost of social care staff and support to vulnerable pupils. A
significant part of this forecast includes the continuing impact on social care and
education services even though lockdown measures have eased.
23. Activity levels within social care continue to cause significant budgetary pressures
on children’s services and in particular against the external placement resulting in
the over-spend. At the end of August 2021 children in care numbers were 827
compared to 754 at the end of April 2020. Gloucestershire’s number and rate of
children in care is above statistical neighbours, but remains below England average.
24. The current forecast over-spend against the external placement budget is £12.787
million (41.1% above budget) and includes a contingency of £3.1 million for new
cases in-year to allow for additional placements to replace existing care
commitments or for higher number of placements due to increased activity. The
forecast also includes the current and future impact of Covid-19 on placement
numbers which totals £7.047 million resulting in an underlying over-spend of £5.74
million. The underlying over-spend is due to the number of residential, fostering and
supported living placements and also the cost of complex residential placements.
The current forecast average unit cost of a placement is £114,700 per annum,
(residential/supported living average unit cost of £187,900) and of the net variance,
£2.7 million relates to activity and £3 million to price. There are currently 459
external placements, of which 121 are residential and 123 supported living
placements.
25. To address this positon the strategy is to bring the child in care population more in
line with statistical neighbours over the coming years. This will involve a range of
measures, aimed to impact on both numbers and associated costs, including
 further developing our edge of care offer to support children at home and to
prevent their escalation and entry into care;

Page 102





increasing the number and proportion of children placed with in house foster
care;
continuing to develop our own placement provision with providers to exert a
greater influence on the market and control costs;
continuing to develop our permanence planning to reduce drift and delay and
ensure children can leave our care in a timely manner by achieving permanence
or reunification as appropriate.

26. Against safeguarding staffing budgets there is a forecast over-spend of £1.232
million (6.4% above budget) with an underlying position net of COVID of £936k.
Effective management of the workforce, improved processes for recruitment, more
effective advertising and the support and training provided by the social work
academy should address the current cost pressure. Turnover of staff is rising and
has been between 16.5% and 20.3% over the last six months and at the end of
August there were 85 agency workers in post.
27. Home to School transport is reported as £1 million overspent and is due to the
number and cost of the transport for SEN pupils, increased cost of procuring new
routes and the number of solo journeys required.
28. The increase in the number of Education, Health and Social Care plans (EHCPs) is
causing a budgetary pressure in SEN budgets with a reported over-spend of £288k
net of COVID. Whereas in-house fostering and adoption services are under-spent
by £521k due to activity at the start of the year being below budgeted assumptions.
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) position
29. Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) funded services are forecast to be over-spent by
£18.283 million in 2021/22, which includes the deficit carry forward of £13.67 million
and the current year deficit budget for High Needs of £4.093 million including recent
adjustments between Local Authorities. The deficit budget results from setting
realistic budgets within high needs services considering growth trends and existing
activity demands on special school and independent provision and top up budgets.
High needs top-up budgets for colleges, primary and secondary schools are
forecasting a £1.25 million overspend due to increased demand.
30. The budget pressures that Gloucestershire is facing reflect the national picture with
significant deficits in DSG high needs being held in many Local Authorities. The
implementation of the High Needs Strategy will be essential to ensure the budget is
balanced in future years and a spending review of services is in progress with a
financial recovery plan being reviewed and developed alongside this review.
Economy, Environment & Infrastructure

Page 103

31. Economy, Environment and Infrastructure are currently forecasting an overspend
position of £3.733 million (4.9% of the budget). This is all down to the impact of
Covid-19 related costs or loss of income as set out in the paragraphs below.
32. Loss of income is forecasted to be £2.115 million which is split between £208k from
Registrations and Libraries, £1.849 million from parking related income and £58k
from other income.
33. Covid-19 costs are forecasted to be £1.618 million made up of £680k for the
Economic Recovery Strategy, £25k for PPE and social distancing related spend,
£339k for additional Covid related expenses against Highways and £206k of other
spend across the directorate on a range of issues. Included within the £1.798 million
of Covid 19 costs are unachievable savings relating to £124k for registration &
library income and £244k against parking fee income which are both highly unlikely
to be achieved.
34. There is a non Covid-19 overspend forecast against Highways due to the high level
of road defects arising from the prolonged period of bad weather which has required
additional gangs and material spend in quarter one of £430k. If we continue with the
additional gangs and materials throughout the year then we will be forecasting an
overspend of circa £1.72 million. EE&I are looking to absorb £420k with vacancies
throughout the year and a Lead Cabinet Member key decision has been taken to
fund up to £1.3 million from un-ring fenced reserves such as the Insurance Reserve
therefore we are currently forecasting a balanced position for EE&I excluding the
Covid-19 related pressures outlined above.

Community Safety Directorate
35. The Community Safety Directorate is forecasting an overspend of £90k (0.45% of
budget). Estimated costs attributed to Covid-19 amount to £85k so excluding these,
the forecast outturn indicates a minor overspend of £5k. The figures include £587k
of carried forward funds, approved by June Cabinet, to implement the Fire and
Rescue Service Improvement Plan.

Corporate Resources
36. Corporate Resources are forecasting an overspend of £6.239 million (17.56% of the
budget). Included within these figures is the forecast additional cost of the impact of
Covid-19 on budgets which totals £5.9 million giving an underlying overspend of
£339k.

Page 104

37. The additional forecast expenditure of £5.9 million for the impact of Covid-19
incudes £100k in the Asset Management & Property Services budgets, £75k against
Occupational Health, £77k Information Management Service, £40k in Policy &
Performance, £698k Legal costs, £180k in the Directorate budget together with a
contingency allocation of £4.729 million which is available to support known Covid19 related commitments in 2022/23.

Technical and Countywide
38. The forecast outturn position for Technical and Countywide budgets is a £4.165
million underspend, included within these figures is a £28k additional cost of the
impact of Covid-19, giving an underlying underspend of £4.193 million . The main
areas of variance are highlighted in the paragraphs below.
39.Positive interest rate credits on cash balances are forecast to produce a £964k
under spend during the year. This is lower than previous years as a result of lower
interest rates introduced to mitigate the economic impact of Covid-19.
40.The 2021/22 budget includes a savings contingency. This was approved by Council
to reflect the high risk nature of some of the savings programmes in demand led
areas in 2021/22. £1.229 million is being used to support the overall budget position
for 2021/22.
41. The 2021/22 budget includes a Pay & Price provision to fund unexpected price
increases during the financial year - £800k is being released to support the overall
budget position for 2021/22.
42. There is a forecast underspend on the corporate Insurance budget totalling £425k
based on trend analysis of insurance premiums.
43. An underspend of £775k within the Capital Financing Budget is now forecast
following reductions in projected capital financing costs due to slippage on approved
capital schemes.

Page 105

B. Capital Expenditure
Current Spend 2021/22
44.The current capital budget for 2021/22 is £157.873 million. Actual spend against the
capital programme as at the end of August 2021 (period 5) is £35.954 million.
Budget and Forecast Outturn Position 2021/22
45.The forecast outturn position for 2021/22 is £153.790 million, against the budget of
£157.873 million, giving a forecast in-year slippage of £ 4.083 million.
46. The current year budgets will be re-profiled in October to reflect the current forecast
spend in each service areas and the revised budget set at £153.790 million. This
ensures the latest figures are included in the MTFS 2022/23. This doesn’t affect the
whole life cost of capital schemes.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 2021/22
Reprofiled
Budget
2021/22

Current
Year
Spend
2021/22

£'000

£'000

% Current
Year
Spend
Against
Reprofiled
Budget
%

Service Area
Capital Receipts Works Before Sale
Adults

0

0

6,726

983

41,591

12,508

543

12

0

Forecast
Outturn
2021/22

Forecast
Year-end
Variance

£'000

£'000
0

0

15

8,812

2,086

30

41,850

259

519

-24

Childrens Services
Schools
Non-Schools

2

Economy, Environment & Infrastructure
Highways

0
66,189

16,844

25

63,754

-2,435

5,321

172

3

4,809

-512

712

10

1

608

-104

1,338

29

2

411

-927

641

384

60

616

-25

39

0

0

39

0

12,022

4,583

38

10,221

-1,801

8,940

188

2

8,340

-600

Business Service Centre

227

82

36

227

0

Archives & Information Management

113

19

35

113

0

Customer

971

140

14

971

0

Strategic Infrastructure
Waste Disposal
Libraries
Community Safety
Fire and Rescue Service
Trading Standards
Corporate Services
AMPS
ICT Projects

Investing In Self Funded Income Schemes
Total

12,500

0

157,873

35,954

Page 106

0

12,500

0

23

153,790

-4,083

Adults Capital Programme 2021/22
47. The Adults Capital Programme is forecasting an in-year overspend of £2.086 million. This
accelerated spend is forecast following the agreement of the 2021/22 Disabled Facilities
Grant (DFG) spending plan. Grant to fund this spend has already been received by the
Council but was originally planned to be spent in future years. This is an in-year
overspend only and has no effect on the overall capital budget. It is proposed that the
budget will be re-profiled in line with the current forecast
Children’s Services Capital Programme 2021/22
Schools
48. The Schools Capital Programme is forecasting an in-year overspend of £259k. This is
mainly due to a revised forecast spend profile for the New Cheltenham Secondary School,
offset by slippage on various other projects. Funding for these schemes is already in the
approved capital budget so this is an in-year overspend only and has no effect on the
overall capital budget. It is proposed that the budget will be re-profiled in line with the
current forecast.
Economy, Environment and Infrastructure Capital Programme 2021/22
Highways
49. The Highway Capital Programme is forecasting slippage of £2.435 million against the
current budget. This relates to an assessment of the risk of disruption caused by current
resource shortages and anticipated problems with the supply of labour, plant and
materials plus the unknown effects of Covid and winter weather. It is proposed the budget
is re-profiled in line with the current forecast.
Strategic Infrastructure
50. The Strategic Infrastructure Capital Programme is forecasting slippage of £512k against
the current budget. £384k relates to the Flood Alleviation capital programme where there
have been delays in project milestones being reached cause by a number of factors
including Covid restrictions. The remaining £138k relates to the Traffic Modelling project
where data from National Highways (formally Highways England) has been delayed. It is
proposed the budget is re-profiled in line with the current forecast.
Libraries
51. The Libraries Programme is forecasting slippage of £927k against the current budget. It is
made up of £746k slippage due to Covid-19 related delays in the rollout of Open+
technology and £181k slippage in refurbishment schemes at Winchcombe, Cirencester,
Charlton Kings, Prestbury and Bishops Cleeve libraries which have also been delayed
until 2022/-23 due to Covid-19. It is proposed the budget is re-profiled in line with the
current forecast.

Page 107

Corporate Services Capital Programme 2021/22
Asset Management & Property Services (AMPS)
52. The AMPS Programme is forecasting slippage of £1.801 million against the current budget
as a result of the impact of Covid -19. The followings schemes have slipped:
 £500k Area Based Review
 £500k County Offices Cheltenham
 £265k Corporate Property Conditions Data Works
 £400k Social Care Services Remodelling
 £500k Quayside Multi Story Car Park
 £435k Minor slippage in a variety of schemes
This slippage has been offset by £800k earlier than anticipated spend on Quayside Health
Hub. It is proposed the budget is re-profiled in line with the current forecast.
ICT
53. The ICT Capital Programme is forecasting slippage of £600k against the current budget.
This relates mostly to Desktop replacements. It is proposed the budget is re-profiled in line
with the current forecast.

Changes to the Capital Programme in 2021/22 and future years
Highways
54. It is proposed that Cabinet approves a net increase of £257k in the Highways capital
budget - £250k for the replacement of poles, push buttons and LED heads across
the County funded from a Department of Transport grant and £7k additional
contributions from parish councils to fund Community Offer projects.
Strategic Infrastructure
55. It is proposed that Cabinet approves an increase of £10k in the Flood Alleviation
capital budget relating to a Local Levy grant from the Environment Agency for the
Leigh PC project.
Community Infrastructure
56. It is proposed that Cabinet approves the addition of a new Community Infrastructure
scheme and an £159k increase to the Capital programme. This funding is part of a
Treescape project which will be a combination of capital and revenue spend over a
four year period. As part of the Climate Change & Air Quality Action Fund GCC
have successfully bid for £282k of Local Authorities Treescape Grant from the
Forestry Commission of which the first £159k will be a capital grant and then three

Page 108

annual maintenance payments thereafter estimated to be circa £41k per year but
actual values will be determined based on the actual number of trees planted.
Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service
57. It is proposed that Cabinet support an increase of £25k in the GF&RS capital budget
for the upgrading of control room equipment funded by part of the Grenfell
Infrastructure Grant from the Home Office.
Overall
58. As a result of the above changes, the overall capital programme will increase by
£451k.

Page 109

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11

Scrutiny of the draft 2022/23 budget & review of Council Strategy

Sessions will be held with Cabinet Member and Directors for each scrutiny committee to discuss the
draft budget. COSC members in attendance throughout the day in order to identify any recurring
themes and trends identifying the key areas they wish for inclusion in their report to Cabinet.
Members are advised to consider how effectively the proposed budget responds to:
o
o
o

the changing needs of Gloucestershire residents and communities?
the priorities and ambitions set out within the Council Strategy
Any legislative or other changes in national policy or guidance

6 January 2022
Room: Council chamber/ Webex

9:30am

Council Strategy
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Cllrs Mark Hawthorne
Officers: Pete Bungard,

10.00am

Adult Social Care and Communities
Cllrs: Kathy Williams, Tim Harman, Carole Allaway Martin
Officers:, Sarah Scott

11:15am

Break

11:30am

Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee
Cllrs Stephen Davies, Phil Robinson
Officers: Chris Spencer

12:45pm

Lunch break

1:30pm

Environment Scrutiny Committee
Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee
Fire Scrutiny
Cllrs: Vernon Smith, David Gray, Dave Norman, Phil Robinson
Officers: Colin Chick, Mark Preece

3pm

Break

3:15pm

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee
(Core Council)
Cllr Lynden Stowe
Officers: Steve Mawson

3:45pm

Feedback to Leader of Council
Cllrs Mark Hawthorne, Lynden Stowe
Pete Bungard

4pm
Report/ minutes will then go to Cabinet

Page 111

This page is intentionally left blank

